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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Select Medical Holdings Corporation:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Select Medical Holdings Corporation and its subsidiaries
at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, and the sesults of their operations and their cash flows for
cach of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedule Tisted in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issucd
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commissicn (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these financial stalements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting appearing under item 9A. Our rcsponsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s infernal control over financial
reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a fest basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide rcasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detcetion of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that couid have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management
has excluded Concentra Inc. (“Concentra”) from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2015 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination
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during 2015, We have also excfuded Concentra from our audit of internal control over financial reporting.
Concenira is a subsidiary whose total assets and total revenues represent 9.8% and 15.6%, respeclively, ol
the retated consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 26, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder
of Select Medical Corporation:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Select Medical Corporation and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedule listed in the accompanying index presents faitly, in all material respects, the information sct forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion,
the Company mainlained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Intermal Control—Iniegrated Framework {2013) issucd
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these financial statements and linancial statement schedule, for maintaining
esffective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting appeating under item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal controt over financial
reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thosc standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and cvaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financiaf reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal conirol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
exterpal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to thc maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (i} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over finuncial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness lo future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As described in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management
has excluded Concentra Inc, (“Concentra”) from its assessment of internal contrel over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2015 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination




during 2015, We have also cxcluded Concentra from our audit of internal control over financial reporting.
Concentra is a subsidiary whose total assets and total revenues represent 9.8% and 15.6%, respectively, of
the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015.

fs/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 26, 2016




PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents .. ... .. . e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $46,425 and $61,133 at 2014 and 2015,
respectively . . ..o
Current defersed taxasset ... ... .o
Prepaid income (aRes . ... oo
Other current assets . .. .o v v o i e

Total Current ASSCES . . oo v v e i e i e
Property and equipment, net . ... ..o
Goodwill . . . . o e e
Other identifiable intangibles, net. .. .. .o oo oo
OMCr 85018 .« o v v v e e e e e

Total ASSEES .« o .t o v e e e e

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Bank overdrafts . ... ..ot
Current portion of long-term debi and notes payable .
Accounts payable .. ... e
Accrued payroll ... ... e e
Accred vacation .. ...
Accrued teresl . . . . oo e
Accrued other . .. .. .o e

Total Carrent Liabilitics . . oo v v oo oo
Long-term debt, net of current portion .. ... ...vun
Non-current deferred tax Hability . . .. ..o oo e
Other non-cusrent Habibities ... ... o oo

Total LIabiHies . . . .o oo i e
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Redeemable non-controlling interests . . oL ..o v s
Stockholders” Bquity:
Common stock of Holdings, 30.001 par vatue,
700,000,000 shares authorized, 131,233,308 and
131,282,798 shares issued and oulstanding at 2014

and 2015, respectively . . ... o
Comman stock of Select, $0.0L par value, 100 shares
issued and outstanding . . . . ... o e e e
Capital inexcess of par ... ... o o
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) . ... .. ..
Total Select Medical Holdings Corporation and Select
Medical Corporation Steckholders” Bguity ..o oo
Non-controlling interest . . .. .. oo
Total BUity . . oo oo e
Total Liabilities and Equity . ... ... .. ..o

Scleet Medical Holdings

Corporation Select Medical Corporation
December 31, December 31,  December 31, December 31,
2014 2015 2014 2015
$ 334 $ 14,435 $ 3354 § 14435

444,269 603,558 444,269 603,558
15,991 28,688 15,991 28,688
17,888 16,694 17,888 16,694
46,142 83,779 46,142 85,7719

527644 749,154 527,644 749,154

542,310 564,124 542,310 864,124

1,642,083 2,314,024 1,642,083 2,314,624
72,519 318,675 72,519 318,675

140,253 180,089 140,253 180,089

$2,924,809 $4,426,666 $2,924,80¢ $4,426,606
§ 2L,746 $§ 28,615 $ 21,746 $ 28,615
19,874 233,570 10,874 233,570

108,532 137,409 108,532 137,409
97,090 120,989 97,090 120,989
63,132 73,977 63,132 73,977
10,674 9,401 10,674 G401
82,376 {33,728 82,376 133,728

354,424 737,689 394,424 737,689

1,542,102 2,190,314 1,542,102 2,190,314

109,203 218,705 109,203 218,705

92,855 133,220 92,855 133,220
2,138,584 3,279,928 2,138,584 3,279,928
10,985 238,221 10,985 238,221
131 131 — —

— — 0 0

413,705 424,506 885,407 904,375

325,678 434,616 (145,892) (45,122)

739,515 859,253 739,515 859,253
33,725 49,204 35,725 44,264

775,240 908,517 775,240 908,517

$2,924,809 $4,420,606 $7,924 809 $4,426,666

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Select Medical Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Year Euded December 3M,

2013 2014 2015
Net Operating TeVETIUES o\ vt v v e v e v n s e e e $2,975,648  $3,065,017 §3,742,736
Costs and expenses:
COSE OF BBIVICES « & o v v vt et e e et e e 2495476 2,582,340 3,211,541
General and administrative . .. ... o o 76,921 85,247 92,052
Bad debt eXpense . . ..o e 37,423 44,600 59,372
Depreciation and amortization .. ... .. i 64,392 68,354 104,981
Total costs and eXpenses. . . ... i 2,674,212 2,780,541 3,467,946
[ncome from Operations . .. oo v v vt e 301,436 284,476 274,790
Other income and expense:
Loss on early retirement of debt .. ... (18,747) (2,277) —
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries .. ........ 2,476 7,044 16,811
Gain on sale of equity investment . ... .. ..o o o — — 29,647
TNEEICSE EXPENSE « « v v v vt v v e i e {87,364) (85,446)  (112,816)
Income before iNCOme FAXES « v v v v v v et v i e 197,801 203,797 208,432
THCOME tAX EXPEMSE + o v v v s r e e i 74,792 75,622 72,436
Netincome ..o ov e e 123,009 128,175 135,996
Less: Net income attributable to non-controfling interests . ... . 8,019 7,548 5,260
Net income atiributable to Select Medical Holdings Corporation  $ 114,390 $ 120,627 § 130,736
BaSIC & ot e e e $ 082 § 091 % 1.00
DIt . « . ot e e $ 0.82 § 0.91 § 0.99
Dividends paid pershare ... ... oo $ 30 $ 040 § (.10
Weightcd average shares outstanding:
BaSie o v ettt e e 136,879 129,026 127,478
Diluted. . . o e 137,047 126,465 127,752

The accompanying notcs are an integral part of these consolidated financial statcments.
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Select Medical Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

(in thousands}

Net operating revenues . ...

Costs and expenses:

Cost OF SCIVICES . « & o vttt e e e e
General and administrative . ... ... oo ey
Bad debt €Xpense . . oo e
Depreciation and amortization . . ... ...

Total costs and CXPENSES. .« v oo vt r vn e e

Income from Operations . ..o v v

Other income and expense:

Loss on eatly retirement of debt .. ...0 ..o oo
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiarics .........
Gain on sale of equity investment . ... .. oo
Trlerest EXPENSE o o v v vt v e e e

Income before iCOmMe [AXES . .o o v oo v
TNCOME LAX EXPENSE o o v v v v v e anams e o nas
INEL HICOITNE © o o v et ir oo e et e it oo ena e
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interests .. ...

Net income attributable to Select Medical Corporation ... . .

Tor the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2014 2015
$2,975,648  $3,065,017  $3,742,736
2,495,476 2,582,340 3,211,541

76,921 85,247 92,052

37,423 44,600 59,372

64,392 68,354 104,981
2674,212 2,780,541 3,467,946

301436 284476 274,790

(17,788) (2.277) —

2,476 7,044 16,811
— — 29,647

(84,954)  (85446)  (112,816)

200,170 203,797 208432

75,971 75,622 72,436

125199 128,175 135,996

8,619 7,548 5,260
$ 116580 §$ 120,627 $ 130,736

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Select Medical Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Income

{(in thousands)

Select Medical Holdings
Corparatien Stockholders

The accompanying notes are

F-9

Common  Common
Comprehensive Stock Stock Capital in  Retained Non-controlling
Tncome Total Tssued Par Value Excess of Par Earuings Interests

Balance at Devember 31,2012 ..., ... o $ 745478 140,589 5141 $473,697 $243,210 $28,430
Nel HICOME |+ o . v v e v e i v e e os s S119946 119,946 114,380 5,556
Nel income—altributable 1o redeemable

non-controlling interests .. ... 3,063
Total comprehensive income L - - .o r - $123,609 $ 119,946
Dividends paid to common stockheiders .. .. .. {41,961) (41,961}
Issuance and vesling of restricted stoek .. ... 6,220 953 6,220
Repurchase of common shares .. ... oo v (11,781) (1,447} (€] {7,52%) (4,256)
Stock oplion eXPENSE -« v v oo et e e 811 8l
Excreise of stock options . . . ... .. .0 1,525 166 1,525
Distributions to non-controlling interests . . . . . . (1.83%) (1.839)
Purchase of non-controlling interests . . . . . . - . 261 2nl
(71 171 T {18) (18)

Balance at December 31,2003 . .. ... 0 $ 818,642 140,201 5140 374,729 3311,365 532,408
Net ifCOME . v v vt v e o e i e $126,765 126,763 120,627 0,138
Net income—attributable to redecmable

non-controlling interests .. ... oo 1,410
Total comprehensive inceme L . ..o e $128.175 § 126,705
Dividends paid to common stockholders . ... .. (53,366) (33,3606)
Issuance und vesting of restricted slock . ... 12,080 1,580 2 12,078
Fax benefit from stock based awards . . ... ., - 3,119 3119
Repurchase of common shares . .. .. oo o (130,734) (11,58%) (i (76,851) {53,871}
Stock option CXpense . . .. ..o 698 0698
Exercise of stock options . . ..o e 7,355 975 I 1354
Distributions to non-controlling interests . . . . . . (2,893) {2,893)
Issuance of nen-contrelling interest .. ... .. . - 1,693 1,693
Purchasc of non-controlling interests . ... .. .. (8,781} (7.428) (1,360)
Lo 17 662 923 (261)

Batance al December 33,2014 . . ... . ... ... $ 775,240 131,233 $131 $413,706 $325,678 535,725
Netineome . . o oo v v e e e e e i e e $138,186 138,186 130,736 7454
Net loss—adiributable to redeemable

non-controlling inlerests .. ... ..o (2.190)
“fotal comprehensive income ... \ $135,994 § 138,186
ividends paid 10 common stockholders . ... .. {13,129) {13,129
Issuaace and vesting of restricted stock . .. .. .. 13916 1.385 — 13916
Tax henefit from stock based avwards . . . . . .. .. 1,846 1,846
Repurchase of commen shares ..o e e (15827y  (1,441) 4 (8.168) {7,659)
Stack option eXpense ... ... e e 33 53
Exercise of stock oplions . . - - o oL 1,649 183 0 1,649
Non-controfling interests acquired in business

combinadion ... ... - e 2,888 2,888
Distributions (o aon-controlling interests . . .. .. (9,732) (4,732}
Tssuance of acn-controlling interests . . . . . . . . 14,569 1,689 12,880
Purchase of non-controiling interests . ... . ... (219) (i) (25)
OWher ... ooovnrnnn e . (923} o 9 (1,018) 78

Balance at Decemnber 34,2015 . ... oo § 908,517 131,360 $131 3424500 $434.616 549,264

an integral part of thesc consolidated financial statements.




Select Medical Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Income

(in thousands)

Select Medieal Corporation Stockholders

Retained
Common Cummon Capital in Evrnings Non-
Comprehensive Stock Stock Excess  {Accumulated controlling
Income Tatal Issued Par Yalue  of Par Deficit) Titerests

Balance at December 31,2002, ... .o $ 909,747 ] 30 $859,839 § 21,478 $28,430
Nelineome . oo v v v i e v e i e e $122,130 122,136 : 116,580 3,556
Nel income—attribulable to redecemable

non-controlling interests . . ... . ... 3,063
Total comprehensive income . .. .. ... . $125,199 $ 122,136
Federal tax benefit of losses contributed by

Holdings .. ... . v v P47 147
Nel change in dividends payable to Holdings . 5,239 5,239
Addigional investment by Heldings . .. ... . 1,525 1,525
Dividends declared and paid to Holdings . . . {2206,621) (226,621)
Contribution related to restricted stock

awards and stock option issnances by

Holdings .. ... ...y 7,033 7,033
Disiributions te non-controlling intercsts . . . (1.839) {1,83%)
Purchase of non-controlling interests. . . . .. 261 261
Other . oo s (18} (18)

Balance at December 31,2013 . .. ... . .. .. $ 818,642 @ 30 $869,576 $ (83,342) $32,408
Net iNCOME . .« ¢ « v oo vt s e oo m s vs $126,765 126,765 124,627 6,138
Net income—attributable to redecmable

non-controlling interesis ., <. . ... 1,410
“Total comprehensive income . . . ... .. $128,175 § 126,765
Additional investiment by Holdings . . . . .. - 7,355 7,355
Dividends declared and paid to Holdings . . . {184,100} (184,100)
Centribution related to restricted stock

awards and stock option issuances by

Holdings .. ..o v nennn 12,778 12,778
Tax benefit from stock based awards . . . . ., 3,119 3,189
Distributions to non-controlling interests . . . (2,893) (2.893)
Issuanice of non-controlling interests . . . .. . 1,693 1,693
Purchase of non-conlrolling interests . . . . . . (8,781) (7.421) {1,360}
OIHET « v v v e e v e s sm e e e 662 923 (261)

Balunce at December 31, 2004 ... ..., .. $ 775,240 ¢ 30 $885,407 $(145,892) $35,725
NELIEOMIE .« o v v s e o s oo em e s $138,186 138,186 130,736 7450
Net lass—attributable o redecmable

non-controlling inferests . .. ... (2,150)
Totul comprehensive income . ... ... $135,996 $ 138,186
Additional investment by Holdigs . . . . ... 1,649 1,649
Dividends declared and paid 10 Holdings . . . (28,956} {28.950)
Contribution related to sestricted stock

awards and stock option issuances by

Holdings .. ... oo 13,969 13,969
Tax benefit from stock based awards . . . . . . 1,846 1,846
Non-controlling interests acquired in business

combination . .. ... e 2,888 2,888
Distributioas to non-controlliing interests . .. (9.732) (9.732)
Issuance of non-controlling interests . . .., . 14,509 1,63% 12,830
Purchase of non-controliing interests ., . . . .. (219y {194) (25}
(o1 17 R (923) 9 (1,0%0) 78

Batunce al December 31,2015 .. ... . - .. $ 908,517 1] 30 904,375 ¥ (45,122) 549,264

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sclect Medical Holdings Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2014 015
Operating aclivitics
IOt ITHEOMIE .« v v v e v b et e e e e bt e bt e e e $ 123000 §128175 § 135996
Adjustments to reeoncife net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Distrilutions from unconsofidated subsidiaries . . .. . . oo oo o v e e — 14,954 13,969
Depreciation and amorlization . . .. .. Lo e 64,392 68,354 104,981
Provision for bad debis . . o v v 00 v e e e e e 17423 44,600 59,372
Cquity in earnings of unconsolidated subsiciaries . v v 0o e (2,476) {7.044) (i6,311)
Loss on early retivement of debt . .. o e 18,7147 2,277 —
Gain on sale of assets and BUSINESSES . . .« . v v v v v i e o s e e e (581) (1,048) (3,098)
Gain on sale of cquity IMVESERNENL L .« . . oo v e — — (29,647
Stock cOMPENSAtion EXPENSE  + + 4 v o o v s s e e e 7033 11,186 14,985
Amortizaiion of debl discount, premium and issuance €osIS . . . oo e e 8433 7,553 9,543
Deferred MICOME LAXES + v o o v v v vt ottt e oo e s e e 7432 14,311 (2,058)
Changes in operating assels and liabilities, net of effects from acquisition of businesses:
Accounts Teceivable . . . o e e e e e e (67,145) {97,802} (92,572)
OBEr CUITENL ASBBIE o« « o v e v s e s e s o et e e s e e n e e (8,167) {1,729 (2.503)
OURES ASSCES © o o o e v v e e e et e e e e (3.484) (103 4,713
ACCOUMS PAYADEE . L Lo v v e e e e (1,283) 5,997 2,345
ACCrUEH BXPENISES « o . o v ek e e e 9,390 (16,039) 7,200
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . ... 192,523 170,642 208,4E5
Tovesting aclivities
Purchases of properly and cqUIPMEAL , .o i {73,660) {95,246} (182,642)
Proceeds from sale of A8SELS . . o . L o o e e 2,912 - 1,767
TrvestmCnE (0 DUSINESSES + o ¢ o v v o e v s o b e e e e e e e e s e (34,893) {4,634) (2,347)
Proceeds from sale of equity IMVeSIMEnt . . . oo oL — — 33,006
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash BOQUITET L . . e s (1,665) (1,211 (1,061,628)
Net cash used in investing activities . . . .. oo i i i e (107,306)  (10L,091) (1,211,754}
TFinancing activities
Borrowings on revolving facifitics . ... oo e 690,000 310,000 1,135,000
Paymenls on revolving facilities . . . . . ..o {800,000y (870,000) (895.000)
Praceeds from term loans, net of discount . . o v oo u e e e 298,500 — 646,875
Papments on term IOARS . ... oo (596,720) (33,9943 (29,134)
Issuance of 6.375% senior notes, includes premium . .. ... e 600,000 11£.650
Repurchase of senior floating rate BOIES . .. ..ot e e {167,300) — —
Repurchase of 7%% senior subordineted 101es ... 0L u i (70,000) — —
Borrowings of other debt .. .. oL e 15310 9,076 13,374
Principal payments on other debt o oo {10,834y (14,673) (18,136}
13Ct FSSULNICE COSES « + « v v e s e e e e in e e i {18,914} {4,434) (23,300)
Proceeds from (repayment of) bank overdrafts .o .o (5,330} 9,240 6,569
Purchase of non-conlrolling INlerests . .. o . v v v i — {9,968 (1,085)
Procecds from issuance of non-confrofling inferesls . ... . oo e e e — 185 217063
Dividends paid Lo common stockholders . .. e (41,901} {53,366) (13,129}
Tax benefit rom stock based awards . ... L e e e e —_ 3,119 1,346
Repurchase of common stock . . . ... ... S (13,781 (130,734) {15,827)
Proceeds from issuance of COmmON SIOCK . o oo v v v v c i 1,525 7.355 1,649
Distributions to non-controlling iNTerests . . . . . .o v vt {3,537} (3,979) (12,637)
Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities . ... ..o n v {121,042} (70,516) 1,014,420
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .. oo oo e {35,825) (965} 11,081
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of peried . . ..o oo e 40,144 4,319 3,354
Cash and cash equivaients agend of period . ..o e $ 4319 § 3354 % 14433
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid For ierost .« . ... ..ot e $ 89061 $ 78812 § 103,166
Caslt paid fOr HINBS o . . oot o v o e $ 64963 § 77771 & 79420

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statcments.
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Select Medical Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2014 2015
Operating activities
NEFICOME + o v v v v v e vt i r e e e e e e e e § 125199  $ 128,175 § 135996
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Distributions from unconselidated subsidiaries ... ..o o o e e — 11,954 13,969
Diepreciation and amortizalon . ... ... ... 64,392 68,354 104,981
Provision for bad debts . . . . o e s 37,423 44,600 59,372
Equity is earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries. . .. ..o (2,476) (7.044) {16,811)
Loss on early retirement of debl - . ... o oo n e 17,788 2,271 —
Gain on sale of assels and businesses . . . ... oo e {581} (1,048) (1,098)
Gain on sale of equily investment . .. .. oo e — -— (29,647}
Stock COMPENSAtion EXPENSE. - .« o« ot i e 7,033 11,136 14,985
Amortization of debt discount, premium and issuance costs . . ... ..o oe 8,344 7,553 9,543
Ieferred IMCOME TAXES . o o v v v v v o e v e a i n s e b e e 7,032 14,311 {2,058)
Changes in operating assets and abilitics, net of effects from acquisition of businesses:
Accounts receivalle . o e e e e (67,145) (57.802) (92,572)
OTher CUTTCIT ASSCES 4 o v v v e e e et e it e s e e i i s s b (8.167) (L,729) (2,503)
OUHCE ASSEIS + 2« - v e e v e st e e e e e e (3,484) (i03) 4,713
AcCOUnts Payable . .o o i e {1,283 5,997 2,345
ACCIUEE EXPESES .+ 1« v v v vt v e b oo s e e 14,027 (16,039) 7,200
Net cash provided by operating activities ... ..o n e 198,102 170,642 208,415
Investing acfivities
Purchases of property and equipment .. ... i e {73,600) {95,246} (£82,042)
Proceeds from s5ale Of A8SEIS . .« v v v r e e 2,912 —_ 1,767
[VestmICnE il DUSIIESSES o o v v v v e ot v o v s mr e e e i e e (34,893) (4,634) (2,347)
Proceeds from sale of equity iInvestment . . .. .ot — — 33,096
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired ..., e (1,665} (1,211)  {1,061,628)
Net cash used in imvesting activities .. ... v v e (107.306)  (101,091)  (L211,754)
Financing activities
Borrowings on revalving FACTHEIES © v v v v o e e e e e e e e 690,000 910,000 £, 835,000
Payments on revolving [aeflities .. .o e (800,000)  (87,000) (895,000)
Proceeds on term loans, net of discount . . .. oL e 298,500 646,875
Payments On (eFM J0MNS o o0 v v n vt s {590,7240) (33,994} (29,134)
Issuance of 6.375% scnior notes, includes premium . ... ool 600,000 {11,050 —
Repurchase of 7%% senior subordinated notes . ..o v o (70,000} — —
Borrowings of ather debl ... ... i e 15,310 4,070 13,374
Principal payments on other debt . ... o (10.834) (14,673) (18,136}
DD ISSUANCE COSLS « .« o v v v v s m e b s e e e {18,914) {4.434) (23,300)
Proceeds from (repayment of) bank overdrafls., ... e e (5,330) 9,240 6,869
Purchase of non-controlling Interest . .. ..o o e — {9,961) {1,095)
Proceeds from issuance of non-controlling interest .. .. ..o ool e — 185 217,065
Equity investment by Holdings . .. ... 1,525 7,355 1,649
Dividends paid to Holdings . . .. ... .o vi e (226,621 (184,100} (28,956)
Tax henefil from stock based awards . . . ..o o e — 3,119 1,346
Distributions to non-controlling inerests . . ... oo oo {3,537) (3,979 (12,637)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .. .. ..o (126,621) (70,516) 1,014,420
Net increase (decreasc) in cush and cash equivalents. .. ... oo {35,825} (265} 11,081
Cash and cash eqguivalents at beginning of period ..o .o e 40,144 4,319 3,354
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of period . .. ..o $ 431y § 3354 § 14435
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid For MEEESE . . . .. oo e o $ 83482 § 78812 % 103,166
Cash aid FOr BIXES . . oo v oo $ 64963 § 77771 § 79420

The accompanying notcs are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies
Business Description

Select Medical Corporation (“Select”) was formed in December 1996 and commenced operations
during February 1997 upon the completion of its first acquisition. Select Medical Holdings Corporation
(“Holdings”) was formed in October 2004 for the purpose of affecting a leveraged buyout of Sclect, which
was a publicly traded entity. On February 24, 2005, Select merged with a subsidiary of Holdings, which
resulted in Select becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of Holdings (the “Merger”). On September 30,
2009 Holdings completed its initial public offering of coramon stock. At the time of the transaction,
generally accepted accounting prineiples (“GAAP”) required that any amounts recorded or incurred (such
as goodwill and compensation expense) by the parent as a result of the Merger or for the benefit of the
subsidiary be “pushed down” and recorded in Selcct’s consolidated financial statements. Holdings and
Select and their subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Company.” The consolidaled financial
statcments of Holdings include the accounts of its wholly owned subsidiary Select. Holdings conducts
substantially all of its business through Selcct and its subsidiaries.

The Company is managed through three business segments; specialty hospitals, outpatient
rehabifitation, and, as of Junc 1, 2015, the Concentra segment. Through the specialty hospitals segment,
the Company provides long term acute care hospital services and inpatient acute rehabilitative hospital
care. The specialty hospitals scgment consists of hospitals designed to serve the needs of long term stay
acute patients and hospitals designed to serve patients that require intensive medical rehabilitation care.
Patients are typically admitted to the Company’s specialty hospitals from general acute care hospitals.
These patients have specialized needs, and serious and often complex medical conditions such as
respiratory failure, ncuromuscular disorders, traumatic brain and spinal cord injuries, strokes, non-healing
wounds, cardiac disorders, renal disorders, and cancer. The Company operated 123, 129, and 127 specialty
hospitals at December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The Company’s outpatient rehabifitation
segment consists of clinics and contract services that provide physical, occupational, and speech
rehabilitation services. The Company’s outpatient rehabilitation patients are typically diagnosed with
musculoskeletal impairments that restrict their ability to perform normal activities of daily living, At
December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, the Company operated 1,006, 1,023, and 1,038 outpatient clinics,
respectively. The Company’s Concentra scgment consists of medical centers and contract services provided
at employer worksites and Department of Veterans Affairs community-based outpatient clinics, or
“CBOCs”, that deliver occupational medicine, consumer health, physical therapy, and veteran’s healthcare
services. At December 31, 2015, the Company operated 300 medical centers, 138 medical facilities located
at the workplaces of Concentra’s employer customers, and 33 Department of Veterans Affairs CBOCs. At
December 31, 2015, the Company had operations in 46 states and the District of Columbia.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its majority owned
subsidiaries, limited liability companics, and limited partnerships the Company and its subsidiaries control
through ownership of general and limited partnership or membership interests. All intercompany balances
and transactions are climinated in consolidation.

Use of Esfimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
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SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and Habilities at the datc of the financial statements, and amounts
of revenue and expenscs recognized during the period. Actual results could differ materially from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
putchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates market vaiue.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company reports accounts receivable at estimated net realizable values. Substantially all of the
Company’s accounts receivable arc related to providing healthcare scrvices to paticnts whose costs are
primarily paid by federal and state governmental authorities, managed care health plans, commercial
insurance companies, and workers’ compensation programs. Coliection of these accounts receivable is the
Company’s primary source of cash and is critical to its operating performance. The Company’s primary
collection risks relate to non-governmental payors who insure these patients and deductibles, co-payments,
and amounts owed by the patient. Deductibles, co-payments, and amounts owed by the patient are an
immaterial portion of the Company’s net accounts receivable balance and accounted for approximately
0.2% and 1.2% of the net accounts receivable balance before doubtful accounts at December 31, 2014 und
2015, respectively. The Company’s general policy is to verify insurance coverage prior to the date of
admission for a patient admitted to the Company’s hospitals, or in the case of the Company’s outpatient
rehabilitation clinics and Concentra medical centers, the Company verifies insurance coverage prior to
their first visit. The Company’s estimate for the allowance for doubtful accounts is calculated by providing
a rescrve allowance based upon the age of an account balance. Generally the Company has reserved as
uncollectible all governmental accounts over 365 days and non-governmental accounts over 180 days from
discharge. This method is monitored based on hislorical cash collections experience. Collections are
impacted by the effectiveness of the Company’s collection efforts with non-governmental payors and
regulatory or administrative disruptions with the fiscal intermediaries that pay the Company’s
governmental receivables. Uncollected accounts are written off the balance shect when they are turned
over to an outside collection agency, or when management determines that the balance is uncollectible,
whichever occurs tirst.

Property and Fquipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, nel of accumulated depreciation. Direct internal and
external costs of developing software for internal use, including programming and enhancements, arc
capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful lives once the software is placed in service.
Capitalized software costs are included within furniture and equipment. Software training cosls,
maintenance, and repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation and amortization arc computed using the
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SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Centinued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the term of the lease, as appropriate.
The gencral range of uscful lives is as follows:

Leasehold improvements . . ..o i 5 - 15 years
Furniture and equipment . . . .o i 3 - 20 vears
Buildings . ..o oot e 44} yeurs
Building improvements . ..., ..o 5 - 25 years
Land improvements, . ... v n i 2 - 25 years

The Company reviews the realizability of long-lived assets whenever events or circumstances occur
which indicate recorded costs may not be recoverable. Gains or losses related to the retircment or disposal
of property and equipment are reporfed as a component of income from operations,

Concentration of Credif Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash balances and trade receivables. The Company invests its excess cash with large financial
institutions. The Company grants unsecured credit Lo its patients, most of who reside in the service area of
the Company’s facilities and are insured under third-party payor agreements. Because of the geographic
diversity of the Company’s facilities and non-governmental third-party payors, Medicare represcnts the
Company’s only significant concentration of credit risk.

Income Taxes

Detferred fax assets and liabilities are recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary
differences between the book and fax basis of recorded assets and liabilities, Deferred lax assels are
reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized. As part of the process of preparing its consolidated financial statements, the
Company estimates income taxes based on its actual current fax exposure together with assessing
temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for book and tax purposes. The
Company also recognizes as deferred tax asscts the future tax benefits from net operating loss carry
forwards. The Company evaluates the realizability of these deferred tax assets by assessing their valuation
allowances and by adjusting the amount of such allowances, if necessary. Among the factors used to assess
the likelihood of realization are projections of future taxable income streams, the expected timing of the
reversals of existing temporary differences, and the impact of tax planning strategies that could be
implemented (o avoid the polential loss of future tax benefits.

Reserves for uncertain tax positions are established for exposure items related to various federal and
state tax matters. Income tax rescrves arc recorded when an exposure is identified and when, in the
opinion of management, it is more likely than not that a tax position will not be sustained and the amount
of the liability can be estimated.

Intangible Assets and Liabilities

Finite-lived intangible asscts and liabilities arc amortized based on the pattern in which the economic
bencfits are consumed or otherwise depleted. If such a pattern cannot be reliably determined, other
intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated lives. Goodwill and certain
other indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized, but instead are subject to periodic impairment
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SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

evaluations. In performing the quantitative periodic impairment tests, the fair value of the reporting unit is
compared to its carrying value, including goodwill and other intangible assets. If the carrying value exceeds
the fair value and an impairment condition exists, an impairment loss would be recognized.

To determine the fair value of its reporting units, the Company uses a discounted cash flow approach.
Included in this analysis are assumptions regarding revenue growth rate, future Adjusted EBITDA margin
estimates, future general and administrative expensc rates, and the industry’s weighted average cost of
capital and industry specific market comparable Adjusted EBITDA multiples. The Company also must
estimate residual values at the end of the forecast period and future capital expendifure requirements.
Each of these assumptions requires the Company to use jts knowledge of (1) its industry, {2} its rccent
transactions, and {(3) reasonable performance expectations for its opcrations. If any one of the above
assumptions changes or fails to materialize, the resulting decline in the Company's estimated fair value
could result in a material impairment charge to the goodwill associated with any one of the reporting units.

Impairment tests are required to be conducted at least annually, or when events or conditions occur
that might suggest a possible impairment. These events or conditions include, but are not limited to, a
significant adverse change in the business environment, regulatory environment or legal factors; a current
period operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of such losses or a projection of continuing
losses; or a sale or disposition of a significant portion of a reporting unit, The occurrence of one of these
events or conditions could significantly impact an impairment assessment, necessitating an impairment
charge. For purposes of goodwill impairment assessment, the Company has defined its reporting units as
specialty hospitals, Concentra, outpatient rehabilitation clinics, and contract therapy. Goodwill has been
allocated among reporting units based on the relative fair value of those divisions when the Merger
oceurred in 2005 and based on subsequent acquisitions and dispositions. The Company’s most recent
impairment assessment was completed during the fourth quarter of 2015 utilizing financial information as
of October 1, 2015 and indicated that there was no impairment with respect to goodwill or other recorded
intangible assets,

Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in connection with business combinations accounted for
under the purchase method are recorded at their respective fair values. Deferred income taxes have been
recorded to the extent of differences between the fair value and the tax basis of the assets acquired and
liabilitics assumed. Company management has allocated the intangible assets between identifiable
intangibles and goodwill. At December 31, 2015, intangible assets other than goodwill consist of the values
assigned to trademarks, certificates of need, accreditations, customer relationships, and leasehold interests.
Management belicves that the estimated uscful lives established are reasonable based on the economic
factors applicable to each of the intangible assefs.

The approximate useful life of each class of intangible assets and liabilities is as follows:

Trademarks . . v v v et e e e s e Indefinite
Certificates of meed . .. ..ot Indefinite
ACCreditationNS . v v v v v e e Indefinite
Customer relationships .. ... oo 9 - 17 years
Leasehold IFCrests « o vt i e 2 - 10 years

The Company reviews the realizability of intangible assets whenever events or circumstances oceur
which indicate recorded amounts may not be recoverable.
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SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

If the expected future cash flows (undiscounted) are less than the carrying amount of such assets, the
Company recognizes an impairment loss for the difference between the carrying amount of the assets and
their estimated fair value,

Deferred Financing Costs

The Company has incurred debt issuance costs related to indebtedness which are recognized as other
assels in the consolidated balance sheet. Debt issuance costs arc subscquently amortized and recognized as
interest expense using the effective interest method over the term of the related indebtedness. Whenever
indebtedness is modified from its original terms an cvaluation is made whether an accounting modification
or accounting extinguishment has occurred in order to determine the accounting treatment.

Due to Third-Party Payors

Due to third-party payors represents the difference between amounts received under interim payment
plans from Medicare and Medicaid for services rendered and amounts estimated to be reimbursed by
those third-party payors upon settlement of cost reporis.

Insurance Risk Programs

Under a number of the Company’s insurance programs, which include the Company’s employee
health insurance program, its workers’ compensation and professional malpractice liability insurance
programs, the Company is liable for a portion of its losses. In these situations the Company accrues for ils
losses under an occurrence-based approach whereby the Company cstimates the losses that will be
incurred in a respective accounting period and accrues that estimated liability using actuarial methods.
These programs are monitored quarterly and estimates are revised as necessary to take into account
additional information. Provisions for fosses for professional liability risks retained by the Company at
December 31, 2014 and 2015 have been discounted at 295 At December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively,
the Company had recorded a liability of $101.9 miltion and $157.4 million related to these programs. 1f the
Company did not discount the provisions for losses for professional Hability risks, the aggregate liability for
all of the insarance risk programs would be approximately $105.5 million and $165.8 million at
December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

Equity Method Investments

Investments in equity method investees are accounted for asing the equity method based upon the
level of ownership and/or the Company’s ability to exercise significant influence over the operating and
tinancial policies of the investee. Investments of this nature are recorded at original cost and adjusied
periodically to recognize the Company’s propottionate share of the investees’ net income or losses after
ihe date of investment. When net losses from an investment accounted for under the equity method
exceeds its carrying amount, the investment balance is reduced fo zero. The Company resumes accounting
for the investment under the equity method if the entity subsequently reports net income and the
Company’s share of that net income exceeds the share of the net losses not recognized during the period
the equity method was suspended. Investments are written down only when there is clear evidence that a
dechine in value that is other than temporary has occurred. 'The Company evaluates ifs investments in
companics accounted for using the equity method for impairment when there is evidence or indicators that
a decrease in value may be other than temporary. The Company’s Other Assets are primarily composed of
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SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

equity method investments of $99.6 million and $101.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2015,
respectively, The Company’s equity method investments consist principally of non-consolidating interests
in inpatient and outpatient rehabilitation businesses. These rehabilitation businesses include a 49.0%
interest in BIR, IV, LLP; a 49.0% interest in OHRIL, LLC, a 49.0% interest in GlobalRehab—
Scottsdale, LLC, a 50.0% intcrest in Rehabilitation Institute of Denton, LLC, and a 49.0% interest in ES
Rehabilitation, LLC as of December 31, 2014 and 2015. The Company’s cquity method investments had
equity in carnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries of $2.5 million, $7.0 million and $16.8 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

Nou-Controlling Interests

The ownership interests held by other parties in subsidiaries, limited lability companies and limited
partnerships controlled by the Company are classificd as non-controlling interests. Non-controlling
interests” which are reported in the stockholders’ cquity section of the Company's consolidated balance
sheets, were $35.7 million and $49.3 miltion as of December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

Some of our non-controlling ownership interests consist of outside parties that have certain
redemption rights that, if exercised, require the Company to purchase the parties ownership interest.
These interests are classified and reported as redeemable non-controlling interests and they have been
adjusted to their approximate redemption values. The redcemable non-controlling intercsts’ balances
reported on the Company’s consclidated balance sheets were $11.0 million and $238.2 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As of December 31, 2014 and 2015, the Company believes the
- redemption amounts of these ownership inferests approximates the fair value of those interests. The
changes in the redeemable non-controlling interests amounts for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2015 are as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2014 . ... e § 11,584
Changes in the redemption amounts . ... vnn i (923)
INEE IMCOTIIE &+ o v v e e et e e e e b 1,410
DUSITUHONS o v v e et et e e v m e {1,086)
Balance at December 31, 2014 .. . e $ 10,985
Issuance of ownership interests in Concentra. ... ... vy 218,005
Ownership interests acquired in business combination .. ... .. ... 14,196
Repurchase of Ownership inferests ... ..o vveveevr e {876)
Changes in the redemption amoOunts . . ... 1,010
et HISS © o v s e et e e e (2,180)
DHSHIDUONS © + v v s ettt e e e et e (2,909)
Balance at December 31, 2015 .. oo oo e $238,221

Net income (loss) of entities controlied by the Company that are less than wholly owned require
attribution of net income (loss) amounts to each non-controlling ownetship interest and to the Company in
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SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income. The net income (loss) attributable to
non controlling interests for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014, and 2015 are as follows:
TFor the Year Ended
December 31,
2013 2014 2015
{in thausands)

Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests

classified as redeemable non-controlling inferests . . . .. $3,063  $1,410  $(2,190)
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests

classified as equity . . ... .. 5,556 6,138 7,450
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests . ... 38,019 47,548 § 5,260

Revenue Recognition

Net operating revenues consists primarily of patient service revenues and revenues generated from
therapy services provided to healthcare institutions under contractual arrangements and are recognized as
services are rendered.

Patient service revenue is reported net of provisions for contractual allowances from third-party
payors and patients. The Company has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to
the Company at amounts different from its established billing rates. The differences between the estimated
program reimbursement rates and the standlard billing rates are accounted for as contractual adjusiments,
which are deducted from gross revenues to arrive at net operating revenues. Payment arrangements
include prospectively determined rales per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem, and
per visit payments. Retrouctive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. Accounts
receivable resulting from such payment arrangements are recorded net of contractual allowances.

A significant portion of the Company’s net operating revenues are generated directly from the
Medicare program. Net operating revenues generated directly from the Medicare program represented
approximately 46%, 45% and 36% of the Company’s net operaling revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. Approximately 32% and 24% of the Company’s accounts
receivable (after allowances for contractual adjustments but before doubtful accounts) are from Medicare
at December 31, 2014 and 2015, As a provider of services to the Medicare program, the Company is
subject to extensive regulations. The inability of any of the Company’s specialty hospitals or outpatient
¢linics to comply with regulations can result in significant changes in that specialty hospital’s or outpatient
clinic’s net operating revenues generated from the Medicare progran.

Revenues generated under contractual arrangements are comprised primarily of billings for services
rendered to nursing homes, hospitals, schools and other third parties.

Stock Based Compensafion

The Company measurcs the compensation costs of share-based compensation arrangements based on
the grant-date fair value and recognizes the costs in the financial stalements over the period during which
employees are required to provide services. Share-based compensation arrangements comprise both stock
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SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Confinued)

options and restricted share plans. Employce stock options are valued using the Black-Scholes option
valuation method which uses assumptions that relate to the expected volatility of the Conipany’s common
stock, the expected dividend yield of the Company’s stock, the expected life of the options and the risk free
interest rate. Such compensation amounts are amortized over the respective vesting periods or petiods of
service of the option grant. The Company values restricted stock grants by using the closing market price of
its stock on the date of grant.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU™) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Confracts with Customers, which supersedes most of the
current revenue recognition requirements, The core principle of the new guidance is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thosc goods or services.
New disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers are also required. The original standard was cffective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2016; however, in July 2015, the FASB approved a onc-year deferral of this standard,
with 2 new effective date for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is currently
evaluating the standard to determine the impact it will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In April and August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03 and ASU No. 2015-15, Inferest—
Imputation of Interest, respectively, to simplify the presentation of debt issuance costs. The standard
requires debt issuance costs be presented in the balance sheet as a direet deduction from the carrying value
of the debt liability. The FASB clarified that debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements can
be presented as an assct and amortized over the term of the arrangement. The guidance is effcctive for
annual fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company will adopt the standard in 2016. As
of December 31, 2015, we had approximately $38.0 million in debt issuance costs included in other assets
that would be a direct deduction of the debt liability under the new standard.

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-16, Simplifying the Accounting  for
Measurement—Period Adjustments, which changes the reporting requirement for retrospective adjustments
to provisional amounts in the measurcment period. The amendments in this update requirc an entity to
present separately on the face of the income statement or disclose in the notes, the portion of the amount
recorded in current-period carnings by line item that would have been recorded in previous reporting
periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The
revised guidance is effective for annual fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is
permitted and the Company intends to prospectively adopt ASU No. 2015-16.

n November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes,
which changes the presentation of deferred income taxes. The intent is to simplify the presentation of
deferred income taxes through the requirement that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classificd as
noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. The revised guidance is effective for annual fiscal
periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Barly adoption is permitted. The Company is currently
evaluating the standard to determine the impact it will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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2. Acquisitions
Concentra Acquistion

On June 1, 2015, MJ Acquisition Corporation, a joint venture that Select created with Welsh, Carson,
Anderson & Stowe XII, L.P. (“WCAS"), consurnmated the acquisition of Concentra, the indirect operating
subsidiary of Concentra Group Holdings, LLC (*Group Holdings™), and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the
terms of the stock purchase agreement, dated as of March 22, 2015, by and among MI Acquisition
Corporation, Concentra and Humana Inc. (“Humana”), MJ Acquisition Corporation acquired 100% of
the issued and outstanding cquity securities of Concentra from Humana for $1,047.2 million, nct of
$3.8 million of cash acquired.

MJ Acquisition Corporation entered into the Concentra credit facilities, see Note 6, to fund a portion
of the purchase price for all of the issued and outstanding stock of Concentra. Concentra, as the surviving
entity of the merger between MI Acquisition Corporation and Concentra, became the borrower under the
Concentra credit [acilities.

Select entered into a Subscription Agreement (the “Subscription Agreement™), by and among Select,
WCAS, Group Holdings and the other members of Group Holdings. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, Select purchased Class A equity interests of Group Holdings for an aggregate purchase price
of $217.9 million, representing a majority (50.1%) of the voting equity intcrests in Group Holdings. WCAS
and the other members purchased redeemable non-controlling Class A interests of Group Holdings for an
aggregate purchase price of $217.1 million, representing a 49.9% share of the voting equity interests of
Group Holdings.

Group Holdings contributed cash of $435.0 million, to MJ Acquisition Corporation. MI Acquisition
Corporation used the cash, together with $650.0 million in borrowings under the Concentra credit
facilities, to pay the purchase price, and fees and expenses.

Concentra, formed in 1979, is one of the largest providers of occupational medicine, consumer health,
physical therapy and veteran’s healthcare services in the United States based on the number of facilities.
As of December 31, 2015, Concentra operated 300 medical centers in 38 states, 138 medical facilities
located at the workplaces of Concentra’s employer customers and 33 Department of Veterans Affairs
CBOCs. Concentra’s financial results are consolidated with Sclect’s as of June 1, 2015.

The Concentra acquisiion was accounted for under the provisions of Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) 805, Business Combinations. The Company allocated the purchase price to tangible
and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values.

During the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company finalized the purchase
price allocation to identifiable intangible asscts, fixed assets, non-controlling interests, and certain
pre-acquisition contingencics. The Company is in the process of completing the accounting for certain
deferred tax matters. The Company expects to complete the purchase price allocation during the second
quarter of 20106.
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The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumced, in accordance with the acquisition method of accounting (in
thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents . ... ..o e 5 3772
Identifiable tangible assets, excluding cash and cash equivalents . . ... .. 405,428
Identifiable intangible assets ... ... . e o 254,990
GoodWill o o e e e e 646,466
Total BSSEI8 « & v v v v e et e e 1,310,656
Total current Habililies . . . o o o vt e e e e 90,188
Total non-current liabilities ... .. . o i e 152,425
Total HABIHEIES & v v v oo et e e et e e e 242,613
Acquired non-controlling interests .. ... P 17,084
Net assets acquired . . v v e 1,050,959
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired ... ... oo 3,772
Netcash paid ..o £1,047,187

The fair value assigned to intangible assels were determined through the use of the income approach,
specifically the relief from royalty and the multi-period excess carnings methods. Both valuation mcthods
rely on management judgment, including expected future cash flows resulting from existing customer
refationships, customer atfrition rates, contributory effects of other assets utilized in the business, peer
group cost of capital and royalty rates, and other factors, Useful lives for intangible assets were determined
based upon the remaining useful economic lives of the intangible assets that arc expected to contribute
directly or indirectly to future cash flows. The valuation of tangible assets was derived using a combination
of the income, market, and cost approaches. Significant judgments used in valuing tangible assets include
estimated reproduction or replacement cost, uscful lives of assets, estimated selling prices, costs to
complete, and reasonable profit. The fair value assigned to non-controlling interests were determined

through the use of a market multiple approach.
Intangible assets acquired consisted of the following:

Weighted Average

Amount Amortization Period
(in thousands) {in years)
Tademarks .« o vt e $104,900 Indefinite
Customer relationships .. ..., e e 141,265 10.2
Leasehold INIErests . .. v v v i i i i i o 8,825 0.3
TOEAL. s e e e e $254,990

Intangible liabilitics acquired included unfavorable leasehold interests of $3.3 million with a weighted
average amortization period of 4.4 ycars. The customer relationships are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over their expected useful lives. Leasehold interests are being amortized over their remaining lease
terms at time of acquisition,
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Goodwill of $646.5 million was recognized in the transaction, representing the excess of the purchasc
price over the value of the tangible and intangible asscts acquired and liabilities assumed. The factors
considered in determining the goodwill that resulted from the Concentra purchase price included
Concentra’s future earnings potential and the value of Concentra’s assembled workforce. The goodwill is
allocated to the Concentra segment and is not deductible for tax purposes. However, prior to its
acquisition by MJ Acquisition Corporation, Concentra completed cerfain acquisitions that resulted in
goodwill with an estimated value of $23.9 million that is deductible for tax purposes, which the Company
will deduct through 2025,

For the period of June 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, Concentra contributed net revenue of
$585.2 million and a net loss of approximately $12.2 million which is reflected in the Company’s
consolidated statement of operations. The Company incurred $4.7 million of acquisition costs in the year
ended December 31, 2015. Acquisition costs consisted of legal, advisory, and due diligence fees and
eXpenscs.

The following pro forma unaudited results of operations have been prepared assuming the acquisition
of Concentra occurred January 1, 2014. These resuits are not necessarily indicative of results of future
operations nor of the results that would have actually occurred had the acquisition been consummated
January 1, 2014,

December 31,
2014 2015

{in thousands, exeept per
share amounts)

TN TBVEIIUE « + o v v oo e e e ettt i v e e e $4.063,218  $4,154,941
NELHICOME & v v v et e e et e et et aaas 106,945 129,737
Income per common share:
BaSIC ot e e e $ 081 § 1,00
DIUEEd © ot et e $ 0.80 % 0.99

The pro forma financial information is based on the allocation of the purchase price and therefore
subject to adjusiment upon finalizing the purchase price allocation, as described abave, during the
measurement period, The net income tax impact was calculated al a statutory rate, as if Concentra had
been a subsidiary of the Company as of January 1, 2014.

Pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2015 were adjusted to include approximately
$19.8 miltion of intcrest expense, an income tax benefit of approximately $11.4 million, approximately
$4.8 million in net income attributable to non-controlling imterests, approximately $1.8 million of rent
expense, and approximately $1.2 miliion of depreciation expense. Results for the same period were also
adjusted to exclude scller costs of $6.0 million, Concentra acquisition costs of $4.7 million, and
amortization expense of approximately $0.8 million.

Pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2014 were adjusted to include approximately
$48.1 million of interest expense, an income tax benefit of approximately $15.5 million, approximately
$8.3 million of net loss attributable to non-controlling interests, $4.7 million of Concentra acquisition costs,
approximately $4.0 million of rent expense, and approximately $3.0 million of depreciation expense.
Results for the same period were also adjusted to exclude amortization expense of approximately
$2.3 million.
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Other Acquistions

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company provided total consideration of $5.6 million to
acquire businesses, consisting of cash amounting to $1.7 million (net of cash acquired) and the issuance of
non controlling interests, for identifiable tangible net assets consisting principally of accounts receivable,
and property and equipment with an aggregate fair value of $3.5 million and goodwill of $2.1 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company provided total consideration of $3.2 million to
acquire businesscs, consisting of cash amounting to $1.1 million (net of cash acquired} and non controlling
interests, for identifiable tangible net assets consisting principally of accounts receivable, and property and
equipment with an aggregate fair value of $1.3 million and goodwill of $1.9 million.

In addition 1o the acquisition of Concentra, during the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company
acquired interests in several businesscs, consisting principally of inpatient and outpatient rehabilitation
businesscs. The Company provided total consideration of $30.2 million, consisting of cash amounting to
$14.4 million (net of cash acquired) and the issnance of non controlling interests in the amount of
$14.7 million, for identifiable tangible net assets consisting principally of accounts receivable, and property
and equipment with an aggregate fair value of $4.1 million. These acquisitions resulted in recognition of
goodwill of $21.9 million and $4.2 million in the specialty hospitals segment and Concentra segment,
respectively.

3, Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,

2014 2015
(in (housands)
Land o e $ 71,635 § 76,118
Leasehold improvements . . ... ..o 155,648 295,647
Buildilgs . ... ovvnvia i 396,228 411,376
Furniture and equipment ..o i 272,919 382,838
Constructon-in-progress . . ... ..o 41,230 146,868
Total property and equipment ... ... 937,660 1,312,847
Accumulated depreciation . ... ... ..o (395,350) (448,723}
Property and equipment, Biet ... ... $ 542,310 § 864,124

Depreciation expense was $63.9 million, $67.9 million, and $96.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.
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4, Intangible Asse{s and Liabilities

The net carrying value of the Company’s goodwill and identifiable intangible asscts consist of the
following:

Pecember 31,

2014 2015
(in thousands)

Goodwill . . s $1,642,083  $2,314,624
Identifiable intangibles—Indefinite fived assets:

Trademarks . oo v o e e 57,709 162,609

Certificates of need . . .. . . i 12,727 13,022

ACCTeditatiONS .« v v v v e e e e e 2,083 2,045
Identifiable intangibles—Finite lived assets:

Customer relationships .. ... oo e — 132,751

Favorable leasehold interests .. ... oo oo oo — 8,248
Total identifiable intangibles . . .. ... .. . o o $1,714,602  $2,633,299

The Company’s customet relationship assets amortize over theitr estimated useful lives, Amortization
expense for the Company’s customer relationships was $8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.
Estimated amortization expense of the Company’s customer relationships for each of the five succeeding
years is $14.6 million.

In addition, the Company has recognized unfavorable lcasehold interests which are recorded as
liabilitics. The net cartying value of unfavorable leasehold intcrests was $3.0 million as of December 31,
2015.

The Company’s favorable leasehold assets and unfavorable leasehold liabilities are amortized to rent
expense ovet the remaining term of their respective leases to reflect a market rent per period based upon
the market conditions present at the acquisition date. The effect of this amortization increased rent
cxpense by $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,

The Company’s accreditations and trademarks have renewal terms. The costs to rencw these
intangibles are expensed as incurred. At December 31, 2015, the accreditations and trademarks have a
weighted average time until next renewal of 1.5 years and 3.8 years, respectively.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the Company’s reportable segments for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2015 are as follows:

Specialty Quipalient
Hospitals Rehabilitation  Concentfra Total
(in thousands)
Balance as of January 1, 2014 . .. .. .. ... $1,334,615 $308,018 $1,642,633
Goodwill acquired during year ... ... oo n 855 1,011 1,860
Goadwill allocated to contributed business ... .. .. — {2,400) (2,406)
Purchase accounting adjustment . ..., ... ... (10) — (10)
Balance as of December 31, 2004 .. . ... .. ... ... §1,335,460  $306,623 $ —  $1,642,083
Goodwill acquired during year . ... .. .o 21,972 — 702,023 723,995
Measurement period adjustment . ... .. .o (53) — (51,373) (51,426)
Disposal of business. ... ... ..o — {28) — (28)
Ralance as of December 31, 2015 . ... .. .. .. ... $1,357,379 $306,595  $650,050  $2,314,624

See Note 2 for details of the goodwill acquired during the period.
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5. Investments in Unconsclidated Subsidiaries

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company sold an equity investment in an
unconsolidated subsidiary of a start-up healthcare company for $33.1 million, which resulted in a gain on
the sale of an equity investment of $29.6 million, The gain on sale of the equity investment was classified as
non-operating income in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2015, The proceeds of $33.1 million were classified as cash provided from an investing
activity in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows tor the year ended December 31, 2015.

6. Loung-Term Debt and Notes Payable

For purposes of this indebtedness fooinote, references to Select exclude Concentra, because the
Concentra credit facilitics arc non-recourse to Holdings and Select.

The components of long-term debt and notes payable are shown in the following tables:

December 31,

2014 2015
{in thousands)

Select 6.375% senior notes™ . .. ... L o o ol $ 711465 § 711,235
Select credit facilities:

Select revolving facility . ... ..o 60,000 295,000

Sclect term 10ans@ . .. ... 775,696 750,485
Other—Select . v v o e e 5,515 11,987
Total Sclect debt ... L e 1,552,976 1,768,707
Less: Select current maturifies - . ... .o 10,874 228,316
Select long-term debt maturities .. ... .o oo $1,542,102  $1,540,391
Concentra credit facilities:

Concentra revolving facility . .. ... v £ 5,000

Concentra term loans® . ... .o o 644,865
Other—COLCEITA « v v v o ettt st 5,312
Total Concentra debt . .. . . oo i it e 655,177
Less: Concentra current maturities . ... ... oo oo 5,254
Concentra long-term debt maturities .. ... ... $ 649,923
Total current maturifies . ... v v $ 10,874 $§ 233,570
Total long-term debt maturities . .. ... ... 1,542,102 2,190,314
Total debl o e e e $1,552,976  $2,423,884

(1) Includes unamortized premium of $1.5 million and $1.2 million at December 31, 2014 and
2015, respectively.

(2} Tncludes unamortized discounts of $4.2 million and $2.8 million at December 31, 2014 and
2015, respectively.

(3) Includes unamortized discounts of $2.9 million at December 31, 2015.
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6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continued)
Select Credit Facilities

On June 1, 2011, Select entered into its existing senior secured credit apreement that originally
provided for $1.15 billion in senior secured credit facilities. The following discussion summarizes
amendments and significant transactions affecting the term loan facilities (collectively, the “Select term
loans”) and the revolving credit facility {the “Select revolving facility’” and together with the Select term
loans, the *“Sclect credit facilities™).

On August 13, 2012, Select enfered into an additional credit extension amendment to the Select credit
facilities providing for a $275.0 million series A term loan at the same interest rate and with the same term
as the ariginal term loan.

On February 20, 2013, Select entered inte a credit extension amendment to the Select credit facilities
providing for a $300.0 million series B term loan. Select used the borrowings under the series I3 term loan
to redeem all of its outstanding 7%% senior subordinated notes due 2015 on March 22, 2013, to finance
Holkdings’ redemption of all of its senior floating ratc notes due 2015 on March 22, 2013 and to repay a
portion of the balance outstanding under the Select revolving facility.

On May 28, 2013, Select issued and sold $600.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.375% senior
notes due June 1, 2021. Select used the proceeds of the 6.375% senior notes to pay a portion of the
amounts then outstanding on the original term loan and the series A term loan and to pay related fees and
CXpEnSes. :

On Junc 3, 2013, Select amended the Select credit facilities in order to, among other things: (i) extend
the maturity date on $293.3 million of its $300.0 million revolving facility from June 1, 2016 to March 1,
2018, (ii) convert the remaining original term loan and series A term loan to a new series C term loan, and
lower the interest rate payable on the series C term foan from Adjusted LIBO plus 3.75%, or Alternate
Base Rale plus 2.75%, to Adjusted LIBO plus 3.00%, or Alternate Base Rate plus 2.00%, and amend the
provision of the series C term loan from providing that Adjusted LIBO will at no time be less than 1.75%
to providing that Adjusted LIBO will at no time be less than 1.00%; (iii) lower the interest rate payable on
the series B term loan from Adjusted LIBO plus 3.75%, or Alternate Base Rate plus 2.75%, to Adjusted
LIBO plus 3.25%, or Alternate Base Rate plus 2.25%; (iv) amend the restrictive covenants governing the
Select credit facilitics in order to allow for unlimited restricted payments so long as there is no event of
default under the credit facitities and the total pro forma ratio of tofal indebtedness to Consolidated
EBITDA (as defined in the credit facilities) is less than or equal to 275 to 1.00; and {v) amend the
definition of “Available Amount” in a manner the effect of which was to increase the amount available for
investments, restricted payments and payment of specified indebtedness,

On March 4, 2014, Select made a principal prepayment of $34.0 million associated with the Select
term loans in accordance with the provision in the Select credit facilities that requires mandatory
prepayments of term loans resulting from excess cash flow as defined in the Select credit fucilities.

On March 4, 2014, Select amended the Select credit facilities in order to, among other things:
(i) convert the remaining series B term loan to a new series D term loan, and lower the intercst rate
payable on the series D term loan from Adjusted LIBO plus 3.25%, or Alternate Base Rale plus 2.25%, to
Adjusted LIBO plus 2.75%, or Alternate Base Rate plus 1.75%; (i) set the maturity date of the series D
term loan at December 20, 2016; (iii) convert the remaining series C term loan to a new series B term loan,
and lower the interest rate payable on the series E term loan from Adjusted LIBO plus 3.00% (subject to
an Adjusted LIBO rate floor of 1.00%), or Alternate Base Rate plus 2.00%, to Adjusted LIBO plus 2.75%
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(subject to an Adjusted LIBO rate floor of 1.00%), or Alternate Base Rate plus 1.75%; (iv) set the
maturity date of the serics E term loan at Junc 1, 2018; (v) beginning with the quarter ending March 31,
2014, increase the quarterly compliance threshold set forth in the leverage ratio financial maintenance
covenant to a level of 5.00 to 1.00 from 4.50 to 1.00; (vi) provide for a prepayment premium of 1.00% if the
Select credit facilities arc amended at any time prior to March 4, 2015 in the case of the series B term loans
and such amendment reduces the yield applicable to such loans; and (vii) amend the definition of
“Available Amount” in a manner the effect of which was to increase the amount available for investments,
restricted payments and the payment of specified indebtedness.

On October 23, 2014, Select entered into two additional credit extension amendments, one of which
extended the maturity date on $6.75 million in aggregate principal of revolving commitments from Junc 1,
2016 to March 1, 2018, the second of which added $50.0 million in incremental revolving commitments that
mature on March i, 2018,

On March 4, 2015, Select made a principal prepayment of $26.9 million associated with the series D
term loan and series E term loan in accordance with the provision in the Select credit facilities that
requires mandatory prepayments of term loans as a result of annual excess cash flow as defined in the
Select credit facilities.

On May 20, 2015 Select entercd into an additional credit extension amendment of the Select revolving
facility to obtain $100.0 million of incremental revolving commitments. The revolving commitments mature
on March §, 2018,

On December 11, 2015, Sclect amended the Select credit facilities in order to, among other things:
(i) convert $56.2 million of its series D term loan into series B term loan, which have a maturity date of
June 1, 2018; (ii) increase the interest rate payable on the series E term loan from Adjusted LIBO plus
2.75% (subject to an Adjusted TLIBO rate floor of 1.00%), or Alternative Base Rate plus 1.75%, to
Adjusted LIBO plus 4.00% (subject to an Adjusted LIBO rate floor of 1.00%), or Alternative Base Rate
plus 3.00%; (iii) beginning with the quarter ending December 31, 2015, increase the quarterly compliance
threshold set forth in the leverage ratio financial maintenance covenant to a level of 5.75 to 1.00 from 5.00
to £.00; (iv} increase the capacity for incremental extensions of credit to $450.0 million; and (v) amend the
definition of “Consolidated EBITDA” to add back certain specialty hospital start-up losses.

At December 31, 2015, Select’s credit facilities provided for senior secured financing consisting of a
$450.0 million revolving facility which matures on March 1, 2018, including a $75.0 million sublimit for the
issuance of standby letters of credit and a $25.0 million sublimit for swingline loans; a $218.6 million
series D term loan, maturing on December 20, 2016; and $534.7 million series E term loan, maturing on
June 1, 2018.

The Select term loans amortize quarterly in the amount of 0.25% of the aggregate principal amount,
subject Lo mandatory prepayment provisions.

All borrowings under Sclect’s credit facilities are subject to the satisfaction of required conditious,
including the absence of a default at the time of and affer giving effect to such borrowing and the accuracy
of the representations and warranties of the borrowers.

The interest rates per annum applicable to borrowings under Select’s credit facilities are, at ils option,
equal to cither an Alternate Base Rate or an Adjusted LIBO rate for a one, two, three or six month
interest period, or a nine or twelve month period it available, in each case, plus an applicable margin
percentage. The Alternate Base Rate is the greatest of (i} JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A’s prime rate,
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(ii) one-half of 1% over the weighted average of rates on overnight Federal funds as published by the
Federal Rescrve Bank of New York and (iii) the Adjusted LIBO rate from time to time for an interest
period of one month, plus 1.00%. The Adjusted LIBO rate is, with respect to any interest period, the
London interbank offered rate for such interest period, adjusted for any applicable statutory reserve
requirements.

Borrowings under the serics D term loan bear interest at a rafe equal to Adjusted LIBO plus 2.75%,
or Alternate Base Rate plus 1.75%. Borrowings under the scries E term loan bear interest at a rate equal
to Adjusted LIBO plus 4.00%, or Allernate Base Rate plus 3.00%. The Adjusted LIBO for the series E
term loan will at no time be less than 1.00%.

Borrowings under the revolving facility bear interest at a rate equal to Adjusted LIBO. plus a
percentage ranging from 2.75% to 3.75%, or Alternate Basc Rate plus a percentage ranging from 1.75% to
2.75%, in each casc based on Seleet’s ratio of total indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA (as dcfined in
the Select credit facilities).

On the last day of cach calendar quarter Select is required to pay each lender a commitment fee in
respect of any unused commitments under the revolving facility, which is currently 0.50% per annum
subject to adjustment based upon the ratio of Select’s total indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA (as
defined in the Select credit facilities).

Subject to cxceptions, the Select credit facilities require mandatory prepayments of Select term loans
in amounts equal to:

« 50% (as may be reduced based on Select’s ratio of total indebtedness to Consolidated EBITDA (as
defined in the Select credit facilitics)) of Select’s annual excess cash flow;

» 100% of the nel cash procecds from non-ordinary course asset sales or other dispositions, or as a
result of a casualty or condemmnation event, subject [o reinvestment rights and certain other
exceptions; and

+ 100% of the net cash proceeds from certain incurrences of debt.

Select’s credit facilities are guaranteed by Holdings, Select and substantially all of its current wholly
owned subsidiaries, and will be guaranteed by substantially all of Select’s future subsidiaries and secured by
subsiantially all of Sefect’s exisling and futurc property and assets and by a pledge of its capital stock and
the capital stock of its subsidiaries.

Select’s credit facilities require that it comply on a quarterly basis with certain financial covenants,
including a maximum leverage ratio test.

In addition, Select’s credit facilities include negative covenants, subject to significant exceplions,
restricting or limiting its ability and the ability of Holdings and Select’s restricted subsidiaries, to, among
other things:

« incur, assume, permit to cxist or guarantee additional debt and issuc or sell or permit any subsidiary

to issue or sell preferred stock;

» amend, modify or waiver any rights under the certificate of indebtedness, credit agrecments,
certificate of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational documents which would be materially
adverse to the creditors;

+ pay dividends or other distributions on, redeem, repurchase, retire or cancel capital stock;
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» purchase or acquire any debt or equity securities of, make any loans or advances o, guarantee any
obligation of, or make any other investment in, any other company;

* incur or permit to exist certain liens on property or assets owned or accrued or assign or seil any
income or revenues with respect to such property or assets;

« seil or otherwise transter property or assets to, purchase or othcrwise receive property or assets
from, or otherwise enter into transactions with affiliates;

« merge, consolidate or amalgamatc with another company ot permit any subsidiary to merge,
consolidate or amalgamate with another company;

« sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of assets, including any equity interests;
« repay, redcem, repurchase, retire or cancel any subordinated debg;
+ incur capital expenditures;

+ cngage to any material extent in any busincss other than business of the type currently conducted by
Select or rcasonably related businesscs; and

* incur obligations that restrict the ability of its subsidiarics to incur or permit to exist any liens on
Select’s property or assets or to make dividends or other payments to Select.

The Select credit facilities also contain certain representations and warranties, affirmative covenants
and events of default. The events of default include payment defaults, breaches of representations and
warranties, covenant defaults, cross-defaults to certain indcbtedness, certain cvents of bankruptcey, certain
cvents under ERISA, material judgments, actual or asserted failurc of any guaranty or security document
supporting Select’s credit facilities to be in full force and effect and any change of control, If such an event
of default occurs, the lenders under the Select credit facilities will be eatitled to take various actions,
including the acceleration of amounts due under the Select credit facilities and all actions permitted to be
taken by a secured credilor.

At December 31, 2015, Select had outstanding borrowings under the Select credii facilities of
$753.3 million of the Select term loans (excluding unamortized original issue discounts of $2.8 million) and
borrowings of $295.0 million (excluding letters of credit) under the Sclect revolving facility. Select had
$116.1 million of availability under the Sclect revalving facility (after giving effect to $38.9 million of
outstanding letters of credit) at December 31, 2015.

The applicable margin percentage for borrowings under the Select revolving facility is subject to
change based upon the ratio of Select’s leverage ratio (as defined in the Select credit facilities). The
applicable intcrest rate for revolving loans as of December 31, 2015 was (1) Alternate Basc plus 2.75% for
alternate base rate loans and (2) LIBO plus 3.75% for adjusted LIBO rate loans.

The Select credit facilities require it to maintain certain [everage ratios (as defined in the Select credit
facilities). For the three fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2015, June 30, 2015, and September 30, 2015,
Select was required to maintain its leverage ratio (its ratio of total indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA)
at less than 5.00 to 1.00. For the quarter ended December 31, 2015, Select was required to maintain its
leverage ratio at less than 5.75 to 1.00. Select’s leverage rutio was 4.78 to 1.00 as of December 31, 2015.
Additionally, the Select credit facilities will require a prepayment of borrowings of 50% of excess cash flow,
which will result in a prepayment of approximately $10.2 million, Select expects to have the borrowing
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capacity and intends to use borrowings under its revolving facility to make the required prepayment during
the first quarter ended March 31, 2016.

Senior Nofes

On March 11, 2014, Select issued and sold $110.0 million aggregate principal amount of additional
6.375% senior notes due June 1, 2021 (the “Additional Notes”), at 101.50% of the aguregate principal
amount resulting in gross proceeds of $111.7 million. The notes were issued as additional notes under the
indenture pursuant to which it previously issued $600.0 million of 6.375% senior notes duc June 1, 2021
(the “Existing Notes” and, together with the Additional Notes, the “Notes”). The Additional Notes are
treated as a single series with the Existing Notes and-have the same terms as those of the Existing Notes.

Intercst on the Notes accrues at the rate of 6,375% per annum and is payable semi-annually in cash in
arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each year. The Notes are Select’s senior unsecured obligations and
rank equally in right of payment with all of its other existing and future senior unsecured indebiedness and
senior in right of payment to all of its existing and future subordinated indebtedness. The Notes are fully
and unconditionally guaranieed by alt of Select’s wholly owned subsidiarics. The Notes are guaranieed,
jointly and severally, by Select’s direct or indircet existing and future domestic restricted subsidiaries other
than certain non-guarantor subsidiaries.

Select may redeem some or all of the Notes prior to June 1, 2016 by paying a “make-whole” premium.
Select may redeem some ot all of the Notes on or after June 1, 2016 at specified redemption prices. In
addition, prior to June 1, 2016, Select may redeem up to 35% of the Notes with the net proceeds of certain
equity offerings at a price of 106.375% plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, Select is obligated to olfer
to repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, as a result of certain change of control events. These restrictions and prohibitions are subject to
certain qualifications and exceptions.

The indenture relating to the Notes contains covenants that, among other things, limit Select’s ability
and the ability of certain of its subsidiaries (o (i) grant licns on its asseis, (i) make dividend payments,
other distributions or other restricted payments, (iii) incur restrictions on the ability of Select’s restricted
subsidiarics to pay dividends or make other paymecnts, (iv) enter into sale and leaseback transactions,
(v} merge, consolidate, transfer or dispose of substantially all of their assetls, (vi} incur additional
indebtedness, (vii) make investments, (viii) scll assets, including capital stock of subsidiaries, (ix) use the
proceeds from sales of assets, including capital stock of restricted subsidiaries, and (x) enter into
transactions with affiliates. In addition, the Indenture requires, among other things, Sclect to provide
financial and cutrent reports to holders of the Notes or file such reports electronically with the SEC. These
covenants are subject to a number of exceptions, limitations and qualifications set forth in the Indenture.

Concenfra credit facilities
Concentra first lien credil agreement

On June 1, 2015, MJ Acquisition Corporation, as the initial borrowcr, entered into a first lien credit
agreement (the “Concentra {irst lien credit agreement”). Concentra, as the surviving entity of the merger
between MJ Acquisition Corporation and Concentra, became the borrower. The Concentra first lien credit
agreement provides for $500.0 million in first lien loans comprised of a $450.0 million, seven-year term
loan (“Concentra first lien term loan”) and a $50.0 million, five-year revolving credit facility ("Concentra
revolving facility”). The borrowings under the Concentra first lien credit agreement are guaranteed, on a
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first lien basis, by Concentra Holdings, Inc., the dircct parent of Concentra. Select and Holdings are not
parties to the Concentra first lien credit agreement and are not obligors with respect to Concentra’s debt
under such agreement,

Borrowings under the Concentra first licn credit agreement bear interest at a rate equal to: (i} in the
case of the Concentra first lien term loan, Adjusted LIBO (as defined in the Concentra first lien credit
agreement) plus 3.00% (subject to an Adjusted LIBO floor of 1.00%), or Alternate Base Rate (as defined
in the Concentra first lien credit agrecment) plus 2.00% (subject to an Alternate Base Rate floor of
2.00%); and (i} in the case of the Concentra revolving [acility, Adjusted LIBO plus a percentage ranging
from 2.75% to 3.00%, or Alternale Basc Rate plus a percentage ranging from 1.75% to 2.00%, in cach casc
based on Concentra’s leverage ratio.

The Concentra first lien term loan amortizes in equal quarterly installments, in aggregate annual
amounts cqual to 0.25% of the original principal amount of the first lien term loan commencing on
September 30, 2015. The balance of the Concentra first lien term loan will be payable on June 1, 2022. The
Concentra revolving facility matures on June 1, 2020.

Concentra second lien credil agreement

On June 1, 2015, MJ Acquisition Corporation, as the initial borrower, entered into a second lien credit
agreement (the “Concentra second lien credit agreement” and, together with the Concentra first lien
credit agreement, the “Concentra credit facilities”). Concentra, as the surviving entity of the merger
between MJ Acquisition Corporation and Concentra, became the borrawer. The Concentra second lien
credit agreement provides for a $200.0 million eight-year second lien term loan (“Concentra second lien
term loan” and, together with the Concentra first lien term loans, the “Concentra term loans™). The
borrowings under the Concentra second lien credit agreement are guaranteed, on a second lien basis, by
Concenfra Holdings, Inc., the direct parent of Concentra. Select and Holdings are not parties to the
Concentra second lien credit agreement and are not obligors with respect to Concentra’s debt under such
agreement.

Borrowings under the Concentra second lien term loan bear intercst at a rate equal to Adjusted LIBO
Rate (as defincd in the Concentra second lien credit agrecment) plus 8.00% (subject to an Adjusted LIBO
floor of 1.00%), ot Alternate Base Rate (as delined in the Concentra second lien credii agreement} plus
7.00% (subjcct to an Alternate Base Rate floor of 2.00%).

In the event that, on or prior to June 1, 2016, Concentra prepays any of the Concentra second lien
term loan, Concentra shall pay a premium of 2.00% of the aggregate principal amount of the Concentra
second lien term loan prepaid and if Concentra prepays any of the Concentra second lien term loan on or
prior to June 1, 2017, Concentra shall pay a premium of 1.00% of the aggregale principal amount of the
Concentra second lien term loan prepaid. The Concentra second licn term loan will be payable on June 1,
2023
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Maturities of the Company’s long-term debt for the ycars after 2015 are approximately as follows and
are presented including the discounts on Select term joans and premium on Select’s scnior notes, and
including the discounts on Concentra credit facilities:

Select Concentra Total
(in thousands)
2006 . e e $ 228316 $§ 5254 § 233570
LT o e e s 6,952 4,168 11,120
2008 . . e 820,051 4,186 824,837
1240 L LR 2,465 4,206 6,671
D20 . e e 228 9,227 9,455
202l and beyond .. ... 710,095 628,136 1,338,231
Total, o o e s $1,763,707 $655,177 32,423,884

Loss on Early Retirement of Debt

On February 20, 2013, Select entered into a credit extension amendment, the proceeds of which were
used to redeem all of its outstanding 7%% senior subordinated notes, (o finance Holdings’ redemption of
all of its 10% senior floating rate, and to repay a portion of the balance cutstanding under Select's
revolving facility. Additionally, on May 28, 2013, Select issued and sold $600.0 million aggregate principal
amount of its 6.375% senior notes due 2021, the proceeds of which were used to pay a portion of Select
term loans then outstanding and to pay related fees and expenses. A loss on early retirement of debt of
$18.7 million and $17.8 million for Holdings and Select, respectively, was recognized for the year ended
December 31, 2013, which included the write off of wnamortized debt issnance costs,

During the year ended December 31, 2014, Select amended the Select term loans under the Seclect
credit facilities and recognized a loss $2.3 million for unamortized debt issuance costs, unamortized
original issue discount, and certain fees incurred related to term loan modifications.

7. Stockholders’ Eguity
Cammon Stock

Holdings’ board of directors has authorized a common stock repurchase program to repurchase up to
$500.0 million worth of shares of its common stock. The program will remain in effect until December 31,
2016, unless extended or earlier terminated by the board of dircctors. Stock repurchases under this
program may be made in the open market ox through privately negotiated transactions, and at times and in
such amounts as Holdings deems appropriate. Holdings is funding this program with cash on hand and
borrowings under the Select revolving facility. For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015,
respectively, Holdings repurchased 1,115,691 shares at a cost of $10.0 millicn, 11,285,714 shares at a cost of
$127.5 million, and 1,032,334 shares at & cost of $13.6 million, which includes transaction costs. During the
year ended December 31, 2014, the shares were repurchased from Welsh, Carson, Anderson &
Stowe IX, L.P. and WCAS Capital Partners TV, L.P. pursuant to stock purchase agreements dated
February 26, 2014 and May 5, 2014, Two of the Company’s directors are affiliated with these entities. The
common stock repurchase program has available capacity of $185.2 million as of December 31, 2015.

F-33




SELECT MEDICAL MOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Stockholders’ Equity (Continued)

Holdings granted 952,500 shares, 1,585,775 shares, and 1,384,954 shares of restricted stock for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively and issued 166,600 shares, 974,969 sharcs, and
183,450 shares of common stock related to the exercise of stock options and for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. Also, 331,697 shares, 302,690 shares, and 486,580 shares
of stack were forfcited for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

8. Stock-based Compensation

On February 25, 2005, Holdings adopted the Select Medical Holdings Corporation 2005 Equity
Incentive Plan. On May 13, 2011, the Select Medicai Holdings Corporation 2005 Equity Incentive Plan was
frozen and Holdings adopted the 2011 Select Medical Holdings Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.
The Select Medical Holdings Corporation 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and the Select Medical Holdings
Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan are referred to as the “Plans.”” The Plans provide for grants of
resiricted stock and stock options of Holdings. On November 8, 2005 the board of directors of Holdings
adopted a direcior equity incentive plan (“Director Plan”) and on August 12, 2009, the board of directors
and stockholders of Holdings approved an amendment and restatement of the Director Plan. This
amendment authorized Holdings to issue under the Director Plan options to purchase up to 75,000 shares
of its common stock and restricted stock awards covering up to 150,000 shares of its common stock. All of
the aforementioned equity plans allow for the use of unissued shares or treasury shares to be used to
satisfy share-based awards.

The options under the Plans and Director Plan gencrally vest over five years and have an option term
not to exceed ten years. The fair value of the opfions granted was estimated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. There were no options granted under the Plans or Director Plan during the year ended
December 31, 2015.

Transactions and other information related to restricted stock awards are as follows;

Weighted
Average
Grand Date Fair
Shares Value

(share amounts
in thousands)

Unvested Balance, January 1, 2015, . ... ..o 3,728 $10.82
Granted © e 1,385 13.94
VEsted o vt e e e (992) 9.07
Forfeited ..o e (304) 12.28
Unvested Balance, December 31,2005 .. ... .. oo e v 3,817 $12.29

The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock awards granted for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2014, and 2015 was $8.48, $13.61, and $13.94, respectively. The total weighted average
grant date fair value of restricted stock awards vested for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014, and
2015 was $4.6 million, $7.4 million, and $9.0 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2015 there were 743,000 stock options outstanding and 728,000 stock options
exercisable under the Plans and Director Plans. The outstanding and exercisable shares have a weighted
average exescise price of $8,85 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.87 years.
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The total intrinsic value of options exercised under the Plans and Director Plans for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2014, and 2015 was $0.2 million, $6.0 million, and $1.0 million, respectively. The
aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and options exercisable under the Plans and Director Plans
at December 31, 2015 was $2.3 million.

Stock compensation expense recognized by the Company was as follows:

Vor the Year Ended
December 31,

2013 2014 2018

(in thousands)

Stock compensation expense:

Included in general and administrative .. ......... $5,276  § 9,027 $11,633
ncluded in cost of services . . .. ..o v i i o 1,757 2,015 3,046
Total . e e e e e e e $7.033  §$11,042 $14,679

Stock compensation expense based on current share-based awards for each of the next five years is
estimated to be as follows:

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
{in thousands}
Stock compensation eXPense . . . .. $15,532  $10,010 $5,204 $1.406 $324

9, Income Taxes

Significant components of the Company’s tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014,
and 2015 are as {ollows:

Holdings Seleet
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Deeember 31, December 31,
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
_ {in thousands) (in thousands}
Current: '
Federal .. ... o e $55,847 $52,063 $63,626 $57.026 $52,063  $63,626
State and local .. ...... .. .. ... 11,913 9,248 10,868 11,913 0,243 10,808
Total current . .. oo 67,760 61,311 74,494 68,939 61,311 74,494
Deferred . ... 0 e 7,032 14,311 (2,058) 7,032 14311 {(2,058)
Total income tax provision . ........... $74,792  $75,622  $72.436  $75,971  §75,622 §72,436
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The differences beiween the expected income tax provision and income faxcs computed at the federal
statutory rate of 35% were as follows:

Holdings Select
For the Yeur Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
Expected federal taxrate .. ... ..o 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local taxes, net of lederal benefit . . ... ....... 4.6 4.2 4.0 4.5 4.2 4.0
Other permanent differcnces ... ... 1.1 0.8 14 1.1 0.8 1.4
Valuation allOWaNCE . . .. . v e 7 ©4 (09 (06) (04) (09)
Uncertain tax positions . ... ..o or e oo (0.6) (0.3) (23) (0.6) (0.3) (23}
IRS andit scflements . ...t n i — (04 ©1) — ©4 (O
Non-controlling interest ... ..o ovn i (L7 (L5 (20 (1.7 (L5) (2.0)
OEHEE o o e e 0.1 (03) (03) 01 (03) (03)
Total . o e e 37.8% 37.1% 34.8% 37.8% 37.1% 34.8%

During 20115, the Company settled with the Internal Revenue Service a tax liability relating to the 2011
scttlement of a lawsuit under the qui tam provisions of the federal False Claims Act and reversed through
the income tax provision the remaining excess lax reserves.

During 2009, the Company settled with the Internal Revenue Service a refund of previously paid
federal income taxes that resulted from the acceleration of tax amortization in years prior to the Merger,
Tax reserves related to this dispute were released in 2014 resulting in the abatement of penaltics and
inierest.
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A summary of the components of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2015
Total Carrent  Non-Current Total Current  Non-Current

{in thousands})
Deferred tax asscts

Allowance for doubtful accounts. § 701 % 701§ — % 9153 % 9,153 % —
Compensation and benefit
related accruals .. ... .. .. 49373 38,722 10,651 61,111 50,303 10,808
Professional malpractice liability
MSUFANCE . . . oo e e 17,934 4,732 13,202 19,654 4,042 15,012
Restructuring reserve . ... ... .. 333 333 — — — —
Deferred revenue. .. ... (829 (829) — (1,009)  (1,009) —
State net operating loss
carryforwards .. ... ... 21,555 436 21,119 21,591 445 21,146
Other ... i i 552 552 — 1,273 357 916
Stock options. . ... ..o 5,336 — 5,336 6,061 — 6,061
Equity investments. .. ........ 3,475 —_— 3,475 3,939 — 3,939
Uncertain tax positions ....... 1,632 — 1,632 641 — 641
Total deferred tax assets ........ 100,062 44,647 55,415 122,414 63,891 58,523
Deferred tax Habilities
Deferred income .. ... .- (31,190)  (25,651) (5,539)  (31,375) (27.221) {4,154)
Investment in unconsolidated
affiliates. . ..o oot {3,659) — (3,659) {4,302) — (4,302)
Other ..o (1,587y  (1,093) {494) {8,444y  (6,072) (2,372)
Depreciation and amortization .. (147,197) —  (147,197)  (260,724) — (260,724}
Total deferred tax liabilities . ... . . (183,633) (26,744) (156,889) (304,845) (33,293) (271,552)
Net deferred taxes before valuation
AllOWANCE oot e e (83,571) 17903  (101,474) (182431) 30,598  (213,029)
Valuation allowance .. ......... (9,641)  (1,912) (1,729) (7,586)  (1,910) (5,676)
Net deferred taxes ............ § (93212) $ 15991  $(109,203) $(190,017) $ 28,688 §$(218,705)

The valuation allowance as of December 31, 2015 is primarily attributable to the uncertainty regarding
the realization of state nct operating losses and other net deferred tax assets of loss entities. The state netl
deferred tax asscts have a full valuation allowance recorded for entitics that have a cumulative history of
pre-tax losses (current year in addition to the two prior years). The net deferred tax liabilities at
December 31, 2014 and 2015 of approximately $93.2 million and $190.0 million, respectively, consist of
items which have been recognized for tax reporting purposes, but which will increase tax on returns to be
filed in the future, and include the use of net operating loss carryforwards. The Company has performed
the required assessment of positive and negative evidence regarding the realization of the net deferred {ax
assets. This assessment included a review of legal entities with three ycars of cumulative losses, estimates
of projected future taxable income, generation of income from the turning of existing deferred tax
liabilities and the impact of tax planning strategies that management would and could implement in order
to keep deferred tax assets from expiring unused. Although realization is not assured, based on the
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Company’s assessment, it has concluded that it is morc likely than not that such assets, net of the
determined valuation allowance, will be realized.

The total state net operating losses are approximately $465.6 million. State nct operating loss carry
forwards expire and are subject to valuation allowances as follows:

State Net Gross Valuation
Operating Losses Allowance
(in thousands)
2016 . e e e e e 3 6,479 $ 5,891
D007 . 10,818 9,828
2 . e s 7,319 4,574
2 1 5 7,948 7,927
Thereafter through 2035 ... ... ... .ot 433,068 333,817

Reserves for Uncertain Tax Positions:

The Company and its subsidiarics are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of
multiple state jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Company’s tax positions and
determining its provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Company
establishes reserves for tax-related uncertainties based on estimates of whether, and the extent to which,
additional taxes will be due, These reserves are established when it is believed that certain positions might
be challenged despite the Company’s belief that its tax return posilions are folly supportable. The
Company adjusts these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the outcome of a tax
audit. The provision for income taxes includes the impact of reserve provisions and changes to reserves
that have resulted from resolution of the tax position or expirations of statutes of limilations.

The reconciliation of the Company's unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands);

Gross tax contingencies—January 1, 2013 . ... .o oo $13,890
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periods due primarily to statute

GXPITALION . o oottt (2,299)
Additions for existing tax positions taken . ... .. . oo 435
Gross tax contingencies—December 31, 2013 . e 12,026
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periods due primarily to statute

EXPITALION . v\ vt e e (1,632)
Additions for existing tax positions taken ...... ... oo o 273
Gross tax contingencies—December 31, 2014 ... ..o 10,667
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periods due primarily to statute

EXPITAION |+ oo oot vt (3,309)
Reductions for setilements with taxing authorities , .. ... . ... .00t (770)
Additions for existing tax positions taken . ... .. ..o oo oo e 373
Reductions for existing tax positions taken . ... ... . 0 (1,395)
Gross tax contingencies—December 31, 2015 ... $ 5,566
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As of December 31, 2014 and 2015, the Conipany had $10.7 million and $5.6 million of unrccognized
tax benefits, respectively, all of which, if fully recognized, would affect the Company’s effective income tax
rate,

As of December 31, 2015, approximately $2.6 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits, including
interest, will be eligible for release in the next 12 months due to the expiration of statutes of limitations.
The Company's policy is to include interest related to income taxes in income fax expense. As of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015, the Company has accrued intercst related to income taxes of
1.9 million and $0.6 million, net of federal income taxes, respectively. Interest recognized for each of the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015 was $0.5 million, $0.5 million, and $0.3 million, net of
fedcral income tax benefits, respectively.

The federal statute of limitations remains open for tax years 2013 through 2015,

State jurisdictions generally have statutes of limitations for tax returns ranging from threc fo five
years. The state impact of any federal income tax changes remains subject to examination for a period of
up to one year after formal notification fo the states. Currently, the Company has onc state income fax
return under examination,

10. Retirciment Savings Plan

Select sponsors a defined contribution retirement savings plan for substantially all of its employees.
Employees who are not classificd as HCE’s (highly compensated employees) may contribute up to 30% of
their salary; HCE’s may contribute up to 7% of their salary. The plan provides a discretionary company
match which is determined annually, Currently, Select matches 25% of the first 6% of compensation
employees contribute to the plan. The employces vest in the employer contributions over a three-year
period beginning on the employee’s hire date. The expense incurred by Select related to this plan was
$8.7 million, $9.3 million and $10.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015,
respectively.

Concentra sponsored a separate defined contribution retirement savings plan and incurred expenses
related to this plan of $8.8 million for the period June 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. Beginning in
January 2016, Concentra’s employees will participate in the defined contribution retirement savings plan
sponsored by Select.

11. Segment Information

The Company’s reportable segments consist of: (i) specialty hospitals, (i) outpaticnt rehabilitation,
and (iii) Concentra. Other activities include the Company’s corporate services and certain other
non-consolidating joint ventures and minority investments in other healthcare related businesses. The
outpatient rchabilitation reportable segment has two operating segments: outpatient rehabilitation clinics
and contract therapy. These operating segments are aggregaled for reporting purposes as they have
common economic characteristics and provide a similar service to a similar patient base. The accounting
policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policics.
The Company cvaluates performance of the segments based on Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is
defined as nef income before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, gain (loss) on early
retirement of debt, stock compensation expense, Concentra acquisition costs, equity in carnings (losses) of
unconsolidaied subsidiaries, and gain on sale of equity investment,
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The following tables summarize selected financial data for the Company’s reportable segments. The
segment results of Holdings are identical to those of Seleet.

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Specialfy Quipaticnt
Hospitals Rehabilitation  Concentra® Other Total
{in thousands)
NEL TEVENUE o v v v e v v ie e e e e $2,198,121 §777,177 $ 350 $2.975,648
Adjusted EBITDA ... .. ... ... ... 353,843 00,313 (71,295) 372,861
Total assetst™: ... o 2,205,921 512,539 99,162 2,817,622
Capital expenditures ...... ... ... 56,523 14,113 3,024 73,660
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Specialty -~ Outpatient
Hospitals Rehabilifation  Concentra'® Other "Total
(in thousamds)
NEt FEVEIUG & v v v v v e e e et e oo e $2,244,899 $819.397 $ 721 $3,065,017
Adjusted EBITDA . ... ......... ... 341,787 97,584 {75,499 363,872
Total assetst: _ ... o 2,279,665 532,685 112,459 2,924,809
Capital expenditures .............. 77,742 12,506 4,998 95,246

Year Ended Decemhber 31, 2015

Specialty Ouipatient

Hospitals Rehabititation  Concentra™ Other Total
(in thousands)
NEt TEVETUC « v v v v v e e eeeieeaaa e $2,346,781  $810,009  § 585222 § 724 $3,742,736
Adjusted EBITDA ............... 327,623 98,220 48,301 (74,979) 399,165
Totalassetst™: . ... ... ..o 2,425,113 548,242 1,331,837 121,474 4,426,666
Capital expenditures .. ....... ... .. 126,014 17,768 26,771 12,089 182,642

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to income before income taxes is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Specialty Ountpatient
Tospitals ~ Rehabilitation  Concentra Other
(in thousands)
Adjusted EBITDA .. ......... $353,843 $ 90,313 $(71,295)
‘Depreciation and amostization .. (48,621) (12,024) (3,747)
Stock compensation expense . . . . — — (7,033)
Holdings Select
Income (loss) from operations . .. $305,222 $ 78,289 $(82,075) $301,436  $301,436
Loss on early retirement of debt . (18,747)  (17,788)
Equity in earnings of
unconselidated subsidiaries . . . 2,476 2,476

Interest expense . .. .........- (87,304)  (84,954)
Income before income laxes . ... $197,801  $201,170
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Year Ended December 31, 2014

Specialty Outpatient
Hospitals ~ Rehabilitation  Cencentra Other
{in thousands)
Adjusted EBITDA .. ..., ... .. $341,787  § 97,584 $(75.499)
Depreciation and amortization .. (51,786) {12,845) (3,723)
Stock compensation expense . . . . — — (11,042)
- Holdings Select
Income (loss) from operations. . . $290,001  § 84,739 $(90,264) $284,476  5284,476
Loss on early retirement of debt . 2277y (2.277)
BEquity in earnings of
unconsolidated subsidiarics . . . 7,044 7,044
Interesi expense . . ....ovve. .. (85,446)  (85,446)
Income before income taxes . . .. $203,797  $203,797
Year Ended December 31, 2015
Specialty Cutpatient
Haspitals ~ Rehabilitation  Concentra™ Other
(in thousands)
Adjusted EBITDA .......... $327,623 $ 98,220 $ 48,301 $(74,979)
Depreciation and amortization . (53,992) (13,053) (33,644) {4,292)
Stock compensation expense . . . — — (1,016)  (13,663)
Concentra acquisition costs . . . . — — (4,715) —
Holdings Seleet
Income (loss) from operations. .. $273,631 $ 85,167 $ 8926 $(92,934) $274,790 $274,790
Gain on sale of equity investment 29,647 29,647
Equity in earnings of
unconsolidated subsidiaries . . . 16,811 16,811
Intcrest expense . .. . .. P (112,816) (112,816)
Income before income taxes . ... $208,432  $208,432

{1) The specialty hospitals segment includes $2.7 million in real cstate assets held for sale on
December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015.

(2) The sclected financial data for the Company’s Concenfra segment for the periods presented begins as
of June 1, 2015, which is the date the Concentra acquisition was consummated.
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12. Income per Share

The Company applies the two-class method for calculating and presenting income per common share.
The two-class method is an earings allocation formula that determines carnings per share for each class of
stock participation rights in undistributed earnings. Under the two class method:

{a} Net income attributable to Select Medical Holdings Corporation is reduced by any contractual
amount of dividends in the current period for each class of stock. There were no contractual
dividends for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015.

(b) The remaining income is allocated to common stock and unvested restricted stock fo the extent
that each security may share in income, as if all of the carnings for the period had been
distributed. The total income allocated to each securily is determined by adding together the
amount allocated for dividends in (a) above and the amount allocated for participation features,

(¢) The income allocated to commeon stock is then divided by the weighted average number of
outstanding shares to which the carnings arc allocated to determine the income per share for
common stock.

In applying the two-class method, the Company determined that undistributed carnings shouid be
allocated equally on a per share basis between the common stock and unvested restricted stock due to the
cqual participation rights of the common stock and unvested restricted stock (i.e., the voting conversion
rights).

The following table scts forth for the perieds indicated the calculation of income per share in the
Company’s consolidated statement of operations and the differences between basic weighted average
shares outstanding and diluted weighted average shares outstanding used to compute basic and diluted
earnings per share, respectively:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2014 2015
{(in thousands, except per share
amoun(s)
Numerator:
Net income aitributable to Select Medical Holdings Corporation . . $114,300  $120,627 $130,736
Less: Earnings allocated to unvested restricted stockholders . ... .. 2,450 3,337 3,830
Nel income available to common stockholders . . ... ..o onn $111,940 $117,290 $126,9006
Denominator;
Weighted average shares—basic ... ... .o 136,879 129,026 127,478
Effect of dilutive sccuritics:
Stock OPHOMNS « o v oot 168 439 274
Weighted average shares—diluted .. ... ..o cav i 137,047 120465 127,752
Basic income per common share: .. ... ..o i e $ 08 § 091 § 100
Diluted income per common share: .. ... ..o $ 082 $§ 091 § 099
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12. Income per Share {Continued)

The following amounts are shown here for informational and comparative purposes only since their
inclusion would be anti-dilutive:

For the Year Eoded
December 31,

2013 20614 2015

(in thousands)

Stock OPHIONS. . .t o e 1,474 6 —

13. Fair Value

Financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, notes payable and long-term debt. The
carrying amount of cash and cash cquivalents approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity
of these instruments.

The carrying value of the Select credit facilitics was $836.0 million and $1,045.5 million at
December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The fair value of the Select credit facilities was $816.6 million
and $1,023.6 million at December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The fair value of the Select credit
facilitics was based on quoted market prices for this debt in the syndicated loan market.

The carrying value of Select’s 6.375% senior notes was $711.5 million and $711.2 million at
December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The fair value of Select’s 6.375% senior nofes was
$722.4 million and $623.9 million at December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. The fair value of this debt
was based on quoted market prices.

The carrying value of the Concentra credit facilities was $649.9 million at December 31, 2015, The fair
value of the Concentra credit facilities was $645.4 million at December 31, 2015. The fair value of the
Concentra credit facilities was based on quoted market prices for this debt in the syndicated loan market.

The Company considers the inputs in the valuation process to be Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy is defincd as inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indircetly, which includes quoted prices for identical asscts or liabilitics in markets that are not
active.

14. Related Party Transactions

The Company rents its corporate office space from related parties affiliated through common
ownership or management. The Company made payments for office rent, lcasehold improvements and
miscellaneous expenses aggregating $4.2 million, $4.4 million and $4.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively, to the affiliated companies.
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14. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

As of December 31, 2015, future rental commitments under outstanding agreements with the
affiliated companies arc approximately as follows (in thousands):

DTG . e e e e e e s $ 4174
20 1 T 4,221
13 1 J A R 4,318
20 3 . A 4,421
/¢ .10 RS A 4,526
TRETCaTleT . o o o e e e e e e e e e e e e s 9,385

$31,045

During the year ended Decetmber 31, 2014, common shares were repurchased from Welsh, Carson,
Anderson & Stowe IX, LP. and WCAS Capital Partners TV, L.P. pursuant to siock purchase agreements
dated February 26, 2014 and May 5, 2014. Two of the Company’s directors arc affiliated with these cntities
{Note 7).

The Company provides coniracted services, principally employee leasing services and charges
management fees to related parties affiliated through its equity investments. Nel operating revenues
generated from the provision of contracted services and management fees to related parties through equity
investments are us follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2014 2015
(in theusands)
BIRIV.LLP ottt $ 96,465 $101,385 §$112,273
Rehabititation Institute of Denton, LLC. .. ... ... 7,163 8,337 9,560
OHRH, LLC . ... oo e 2,069 8,280 10,010
Global Rehab—Scottsdale, LLC .. ... ... ... ... 4,129 10,747 12,155
OUReE e e e 310 518 2,035
Total o e e $110.136  $129,267  $146,033
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15. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

The Company leases faciliies and equipment from unrelated parties under operating leases.
Minimum future lease obligations on long-term non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31,
2015 are approximately as follows (in thousands):

Select Cuancentra Tatal
(in thousands)
JOLB e e e $145,185 $ 59,845 § 205,030
2007 e 122,606 53,518 176,124
2038 e 99,873 44,688 144,561
12743 L 79,002 36,485 155,487
20 e e 61,462 30,098 91,560
Thereafler . . v v i e et i e e e 348,222 61,501 409,723

$856,350  $286,135  $1,142,485

Total rent expensc for operating leases, including cancclable leases, for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2014 and 2015 was $164.6 million, $169.1 million, and $212.9 million (including $34. 9 million for
Concentra), respectively.

Property rent expense Lo unrelated parties for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015 was
$119.5 million, $124.4 million. and $163.4 million (including $32.9 million for Concentra), respectively.

Construction Commitiments

At December 31, 2015, the Company had outstanding commitments under construction contracts
related to new construction, improvements and renovations at the Company’s long term acutc care
propertics and inpatient rchabilitation facilities, and Concentra facilities totaling approximately
$15.7 million.

Other

A subsidiary of the Company has entered into a naming, promotional and sponsorship agrcement with
an NFL team for the team’s headquarters complex that requires a payment of $3.1 million in 2016, Each
successive annual payment increases by 2.3% through 2025. The naming, promotional and sponsorship
agreement is in cffect until 2025.

Litigation

The Company is a patty to various legal actions, proceedings and claims (some of which are nol
insured), and regulatory and other governmental audits and investigations in the ordinary course of its
business. The Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of pending litigation, proceedings and
regulatory and other governmental audits and investigations. These matters could potentially subject the
Company to sanctions, damages, recoupments, fines and other penalties. CMS or other federal and state
enforcement and regulatory agencies may conduct additional investigations related to the Company’s
businesses in the future that may, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse cffect on
the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations and liquidity.
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15. Conunitments and Contingencies (Continued)

To address claims arising out of the Company’s operations, the Company maintains professional
malpractice liability insurance and general liability insurance, subject to sclf-insurcd retention of
$2.0 million per medical incident for professional liability claims and $2.0 million per occurrence for
general liability claims. The Company also maintains umbrella liability insurance covering claims which,
due {o their nature or amount, are not covered by or not fully covered by the Company’s other insurance
policies. These insurance policies also do not generally cover punitive damages and are subject to various
deductibles and policy limits, Significant legal actions, as well as the cost and possible lack of available
insurance, could subject the Company to substantial uninsurcd liabilities. In the Company’s opinion, the
outcome of these actions, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse ctfect on ifs
financial position, tesults of operations, or cash flows.

Healthcare providers are subject to lawsuits under the qui tam provisions of the federal False Claims
Act. Qui tam lawsuits typically remain under scal (hence, usually unknown to the defendant) for some time
while the government decides whether or not to intervene on behaif of a private qui tam plaintitf (known
as a relator) and take the lead in the litigation. These lawsuils can involve significant monetary damages
and penaltics and award bounties to private plaintiffs who successfully bring the suits, The Company is and
has been a defendant in these cases in the past, and may be named as a defendant in similar cases from
time to time in the future.

On October 19, 2015, the plaintiff-relators filed a Second Amended Complaint in United States of
America, ex tel. Tracy Conroy, Pamela Schenk and Lisa Wilson v. Select Medical Corporation, Select
Specialty Hospital—Evansville, LLC (“SSH-Evansville”), Select Employment Services, Inc, and
Dr. Richard Sloan. The case is a civil action filed in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of Indiana by private plaintiff-relators on behalf of the United States under the federal False
Claims Act. The plaintitf-rclators are the former CEO and two former casc managers at SSH-Evansville,
and the defendants cutrently include the Company, SSH-Evansville, a subsidiary of the Company serving
as common paymaster for its employees, and a physician who practices at SSH-Evansville. The plaintiff-
relators allege that that SSH-Evansville discharged patients too early or held patients too long, improperly
discharged patients to and readmitted them from short stay hospitals, up-coded diagnoses at admission,
and admitted paticnts for whom long-term acufe care was not medically nccessary. They also allege that
the defendants engaged in retaliation in violation of federal and state law. The Second Amended
Complaint replaces a prior complaint that was filed under seal on September 28, 2012 and served on the
Company on February 15, 2013, after a federal magistrate judge unsealed it on January 8, 2013. All
deadiines in the case had been stayed after the seal was lifted in order to allow the government time to
complete its investigation and to decide whether or not to intervene. On June 19, 2015, the U.S,
Department of Justice notified the court of its decision not to intervenc in the case, and the court
thereafter approved a cuse management plan imposing certain deadtines. The plaintiff-relators filed a
Sccond Amended Complaint in October 2015, and defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss such Complaint in
December 2015, The Company intends to vigorously defend this action, but at this time the Company is
unable to predict the timing and outcome of this matter,

On July 13, 2015, the federal District Court for the Eastern District of Tennessec unsealed a qui tam
Complaint in Armes v. Garman, et al, No, 3:14-¢v-00172-TAV-CCS, which named as defendants Select,
Select Specialty Hospital—Knoxville, Inc. (“SSH-Knoxville”), Select Specialty Hospital—North
Knoxville, Inc. and ten current or former employees of these facilities. The Complaint was unscaled afler
the United States and the State of Tennessee notified the Court on July 13, 2015 that each had decided not
to intervene in the case. The Complaint is a civil action that was filed under seal on April 29, 2014 by a
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15. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

respiratory therapist formerly cmployed at SSH-Knoxville. The Complaint alleges violations of the federal
False Claims Act and the Tenncssee Medicaid False Claims Act bascd on extending patient stays (o
increase reimbursement and to increase average length of stay; artificially prolonging the lives of patients
lo increase Medicare reimbursements and decrease inspections; admitting patients who do not require
medically necessary care; performing unnccessary procedures and services; and delaying performance of
procedures to increase billing. The Complaint was served on some of the defendants during October 2015.
The defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss such Complaint in November 2015, The Company intends to
vigorously defend this action if the relators pursuc it, but at this time the Company is unable to predict the
timing and outcome of this matter,

16. Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

The following table summarizes non cash investing and financing activities for both Holdings and
Select at December 31, 2013, 2014, and 2015:

Tar the Year Ended
December 31,

2013 2014 2015
{in thousands)
Notes issued with acquisitions ... ... ..o o $3,283 3 327 § 12
Liabilitics assumed with acquisitions . .. ... ......... 885 122 298
Contingent consideration related to acquisitions . ... .. 100 — —
Liahility for property and equipment ... ........... — 14230 36,744
Notes issued to acquire non-consolidating interest . . . .. 3,399 — —

17. Subsequent Events

On January 25, 2016, Select announced that it has entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger,
dated as of January 22, 2016 with Grip Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corpoaration and wholly owned
subsidiary of Select, Physiotherapy Associates Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Plysiotherapy™),
and KHR Physio, LLC, a Delawarc limited Lability company, solely in its capacity as the Holder
Representative (as defined in the merger agrecment), Pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement,
Select will acquire Physiotherapy for $400.0 million in cash, subject to certain adjustments in accordance
with the terms set forth in the merger agreement, through the merger of Grip Merger Sub, Inc. with and
into Physiotherapy, with Physiotherapy continuing as the surviving carporation under its present name as 4
wholly owned subsidiary of Select.

Select cxpects fo finance the transaction and related expenses using a combination of cash on hand
and the proceeds from a proposed $400.0 million senior secured incremental term facility under its existing
credit facility, for which JP Morgan Chase, N.A. has provided Select with a debt commitment letter.
Should the merger agreement be terminatcd by Physiotherapy under specified conditions, including
circumstances where Select is required to close the transaction under the merger agreement and there is o
failure of the debt financing to be funded in accordance with its terms, a reverse termination fee of
$24.0 million would be payable by Sclect to Physiotherapy, The transaction, which is expected to close in
the first half of 2016, is subject to a number of closing conditions.

F-47




SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries under Select’s
6.375% Senior Notes

Select’s 6.375% senior notes are fully and unconditionally puaranteed, except for customary
limitations, on a senior basis by all of Select’s whoily owned subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary Guarantors”)
which is defined as a subsidiary where Select or a subsidiary of Select holds all of the outstanding
ownership interests. Certain of Sclect’s subsidiaries did not guaraniec the 6.375% scnior notes (the
“Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries,” including Group Holdings and its subsidiaries, which were designated as
Non-Guarantor subsidiaries by Select’s board of directors at the closing of the Concentra acquisition, the
“Non-Guarantor Concentra”).

Select conducts a significant portion of its business through its subsidiaries. Presented below is
condensed consolidating financial information for Select, the Subsidiary Guarantors, the Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries, and Non-Guarantor Concentra at December 31, 2014 and 2015 and for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015,

Seleet conducts a significant portion of its business through its subsidiaries, Presented below is
condensed consolidating financial information for Select, the Subsidiary Guarantors, the Non-Guarantor
Subsidiarics, and Non-Guarantor Concentra

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company purchased the remaining outstanding
non-controlling interest in a specialty hospital business changing the entity from a non-guarantor
subsidiary to a guarantor subsidiary. The year cnded and as of December 31, 2013 has been retrospectively
revised based on the guarantor structure that existed at December 31, 2014,
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18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries under Select’s

6.375% Senior Notes {Continued)

Assels
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... .o
Accounls receivaible, net - oo oo
Current deferred tax asset ... . o
Intercompuny receivables . . . ... ...
Prepaid income taxes . ... ool
Other corrent assels . .o v v v v o a s
Totad Current Asscls . o oo v oo oo e
Property and equipment. net ., .. oL
Investment in affiliates ., .. ... o000 o
Goudwill . .. e e
Non-current deferved tax assel « .. - o0 oo b
Other identifiable intangibles . . ... .. ...
Other A85C18  « o 0 o 4 v m v e v oo
Tl ASSCIS . . o v v v e e e e e e e

Lialilitics and Equity
Cuyrent Linhilities:
Bank overdrafts . . ... ... oo
Current portion of fong-term debt and notes
payable .. .. oo e
Accounts payable . . ..o oo
Intercempany payables . . . . ... ..o
Accrued payrodl Lo Lo
Accrued vacation . ... .. oo
Accrued interest ... e e e
Accmmed other . . o . v

Total Current Lishilities . .. . ..o o000t
Long-term debt, net of current portion . . . . ..
Non-current deferred (ax lability ... ... ..
Other non-current liabilities ... .. .. .. ..

Total Liabilities . . .. .. oo
Redeemable non-controlling intcrests . . .. . . .
Stockholder’s Equity:
Commoa slock . .00
Capital in excess of par. . ... s
Retained carnings (uccumulated deficit) . . . .
Subsidiagy investment . . . ..o -

Totad Select Medical Cerporation Stockholder's
Bguily . o v v vov e oo e
Non-controlling isferests . oo o oo

Tetal Bquity . o o o o o v o v i
‘Total Liabilities and Equity . . . .. . . . ... .-

(a}  Elimigation of intereompany.

Select Medical Corporation
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015

Consnlidaled
Sefvct
Seleet (Pavent  Subsidiary  Nen-Guarantor  Non-Guarantor Medical
Company Only) Guarantors  Subsidiaries Concentrs Eliminations Corporation
{in thousands)
5 4070 $ 3706 5 625 3 6034 $ — $ 14435
— 419,382 68,504 115672 — 603,558
11,556 6,708 4,786 5.638 — 28688
— 1,970477 137.512 — (2,107,989 () —
7.97% — — 8715 — 16,054
10,521 34,859 5,759 34.640) — 845,779
3,126 2,435,132 217,186 {70,699 (2,107,989 744,154
38,872 548,809 61,137 215,306 — 8nd, 124
4,107,830 75,027 — — (4,132,957 (b)(c) —
— 1,663,974 — 630650 — 2,314,624
12,297 — — — (12.297)(d) —
—_ 72,776 — 245,899 — 318,475
21,623 108,524 639 49,283 — 180,089
54,214,848 54,904,242 278,982 $1,331,837 ${6,303,243) 54,426,600
$ 28415 § — $ — $ — $ — $ 2,615
227,180 197 939 5.254 — 233,570
18,445 101,156 16,997 8.511 — 137,409
L9477 131512 — — {(2,107.989)(a} —
22970 0,852 3,932 27,195 — 120,989
0,446 50,194 9,423 7.954 —_ 73,8977
6,315 3 — 3.083 — G4l
38,883 42,939 3,866 42.040 — 133,728
2,311,291 398,593 41,157 94,337 (2,107,489 737,089
997,114 452,417 91,860 644,923 — 2,190,314
— 113,977 9,656 107,369 (12,297){d} 218,705
47,100 £1.904 4,798 39,328 — 133.220
3,355,595 Lo07,191 146,471 890,957 (2,120,286} 3,279,928
— — 12,094 226,127 —_ 238221
0 — — — — 0
904,375 —_ — — — 904,375
(45,122) 1,187,022 (1,006) (6.120) {£,179,590){c) (45,122}
— 2,740,029 75,097 217,935 (3,003,061)(b) —
859,253 3,897,051 74,0481 211,815 (4,182,957) 859,233
—_ — 46,326 2938 — 49,264
859,253 3,897,051 120,417 214,753 (4,182,957} oNs, 517
34,214,848 54,904,242 3278982 §1,331,837 $(6,303,243) 54.426,666

(b  Elimination of investments in consoliduled subsidiaries.

{(r) Elimination of investments in consolidated subsidiaries’ caraings.

(4} Reclass of non-current deferred lax asset 1o report nel non-current deferred tax lidhility in consofidation.
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18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guuarantor Subsidiaries under Select’s
6.375% Senior Notes (Continued)

Net operating revenues . . . .. . .

Cosls and expenses:
Cost of services .., . ...
General and administrative . . .
Bad debt expense ..., ...
Depreciation and amortization .

Total costs and expenses . .., . .

Income {loss) {rom operations
Other income and expease:
Intercompany interest and
royalty fees . . ... ...
Intercompany management fees
Gain on sale of equity
investment ... ... .. ..
Equily in earnings ol
unconsolidated subsidiaries . |
Interest expense . .. . o . ...
Income {loss) [rem operations
before income taxes. .. .. .. .
Incame tax expense {benefit) . ..
Houity it carnings of subsidiarics .

Netingome ... ..o os
Less: Net income attributable fo
nen-controlling interests . .. . .

Nel income (loss} attributable to
Sclect Medical Corporation . . .

(z) Elimination of equily in caraings of subsidiurics,

Select Medical Corporation
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Consolidated
Select
Select (Parent  Subsidiary Nom-Guarantor Noun-Guarantor Medical
Company Only) Guarantors  Subsidiaries Concentra Eliminations  Corporation
{in thousands)
£ 724 $2,673,987 $482,803 $585,222 $ $3,742,736
24129 2,206,047 414,518 528,347 — 3,211,541
48,227 (890) — 4,715 — 92,052
— 40,541 9,240 9,591 — 59,372
4,292 56,447 1,598 33,044 — 1,981
94,548 2,362,745 434,356 576,297 3,467,946
(93,824) 311,242 48,447 8,925 e 274,790
(1417 1,387 30 —- —
143,939 (119,388) {24,551) - —_—
— 29,647 — — — 29,647
— 16,719 92 — — 16,811
(58,3500 {24,250} (6,154) {24,062) — (112.816)
(9.652) 215,357 i7,804 (15,137) — 208,432
(7,869} 85,907 {470) (5,132) — 72,430
132,520 9117 — — (141,637)(a) —
130,737 138,567 18,334 (10,005) (141,637) 135,996
— — 9,144 {3,884} -— 5,260
$130,737 $ 138,567 5 9,190 $ (6,121) ${141,637) $ 130,736

F-50




SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION

NOTES TG CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries under Select’s

6.375% Senior Notes (Continued}

Select Medical Corporation
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Select Consolidated
(Parent Noin- Nuoa- Select
Company Subsidiary Guarantor  Guaraetor Medical
Only)  Guarantors Subsidineies Cencestza Eliminatiens Corporation
(in (housands}
Operating activities
NELIICOIE « o o e o e v e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e § 130,737 5 138,567 $518334 5 (10,005) SI1L6INE) 5 135996
Adjustpients to reconcile not imcome 1o act cash provided by operating )
activilies:
Distributions from unconsolidated subsidiaries . ... v oo oL — 13,870 g9 — — 13,969
Depreciution and amertization .« . ..o oL oo e 4,292 56.447 10,508 33,044 — 104,981
Provisionn fur bad debts L o o o o oo e — 40,541 9,240 9,591 — 54,372
Equity in carnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries . . . ... ... 000 — (16,714) (92) — — (16.811)
Losg (pain) on sale of assels and businesses . . .. L Lo e — (1,128) 16 14 — {1.098)
Gain on sale of equily investment . ... .. ... e — {29647 — — e (29.647)
Stock compensation expense . L. L. 13,968 — — L0 — L4985
Amartization of debt discount and issuance cost 7404 — — 2,139 — 9543
Deoferred income XCS . - 0 . v v v v v e i e e e e e e s (3,484) o — 1426 — (2,058}
Changes in opcrating assels and liabilities, net of cffects from acquisition
of businesses:
Fquily in earnings of subsidiaries . .. ... .. ..o o o {132,520 (9,187} — e 141,637(a) —
Accounts receivable . . L L Lo L e e e e — (83,147} (10,253} 825 — (92.572)
Other CHNTCRL HSSEIS  + « « v v v v e e e e e i n e e e e (2,661) (2.236) (396} 2,790 — (2.503)
OWHET A8SCTS & . 4 v v v e e e e e e e e e e e A e e 10,840 {6,415} 288 — e 4,713
Accomnls puyable . .. oL L e 560 8,564 2,654 (2.438) o 2345
ACCTUEE CXPELISES © o o o v v v n e v e e e e e e e e {1,508) 9,509 5,696 (6,557) — 7,200
Net cash pravided by operating activilies . . . v v oo o 27,629 119,159 34,182 25445 e 208415
Tnvesting activities
Purchases of property and equipment . . ... oL oo s (LL890)  (134,002) (10,979 {26,771) — (182.642)
Proceeds from sale 0f 988815 . . . . . 0 0 v v s o e e e e e e e — 1,742 24 1 —_ 1,767
[nvestmenl in DUSINESSES . o o v o o vt v v v v e e e e e — (2,347 — — — {2,347)
Procecds from sale of cquity method investment . oo oL — 33,096 — — — 33,096
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired . .. oL oL — — (8,832)  (1,052,79%) — (1,061,628)
Net cash used indnvesting aetivities . .. . ... L Lo o e (10398) (101,511) (19,787)  (LO79,566} — (L2175
Fiamcing activities
Bomowings o revolving lacilities . . . .. .. oo oo e 1,115,008 — — 20,006 — 1,135,008
Fayments on revolving Facilities . . ... oo {880,009 — - (15,006} — (895,000
Procecds from fenm loans, nel of disCOUmls v v v v v v e e e — — — 446,875 — 630,875
Payments on erm Joins . o oo oo e e {20,884) — e (2,250} — {29.834)
Borrowings of otherdebl . . ..o oo e 8,684 — 1,681 3.006 — 13,374
Principal payments onother debl . .o 0L (£1,923) {2.736) (L3513} (1,964) — {18,136}
Dbt ISSUBACE COSIE  © v+ o v v v e e e e m e e e e s — — — (23.300) — {23,306}
Proceeds from bank overdrafls . . .o oo 6,369 — — -— — 6,56%
Equity iovestment hy Holdings . . . . . ... oo oo 1,649 — -— — — 1.64%
Dividends paid to Holdings . . . . .. .. o oo (28,956) — e — — {28,956}
IRISETOMPAIY © o v o v v e o v e v e e e e e e e (£99,024)  {13,660) (5,251) 217,935 — —
Purchase of pon-controlling fnferests . . . . .. . .o a e s — — (E.093) — — (1,095}
Proceeds from issuance of non-vontrolling interests . . . oo oo —_ — — 211,065 — 217,085
Fax benefit [rom stock bused awnrds L o Lo oo oo 1,846 — — — — 1,846
Distributions to non-controliing fnterests . . . . . .. ... o — — {10,422) L {2,215) — {12,637}
Nct cash provided by (used in} financing activitics . . ... . oo {12,739)  {16,3%06) (10,600) 1,060,155 — 1,014,420
Net incresse {devrease) in cush apd cash equivaients . . ... ... .0y 4,000 1,252 (208) 6,134 — [1.081
Cush and cush vquivalents af beginaing of period . ... oo ooy v 2454 paci] - — 3.354
Cash and cash equivaients atend of period . . ..o S 44070 F 3,706 $ 625 0§ 6034 S — $ 14435

(1) Efimination of equity in earnings of copsulidated subsidiaries.




SELECT MEDICAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SELECT MEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries under Select’s

6.375% Senior Notes {Continued)

Select Medical Corporation
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Select Consolidated
{Parent Non- Select
Compuny Subsidiary  Guarautor Medical
Ouly)  Cuarantors Subsidinries Elfminations Corporation
(in thousands)
Assels
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . v v oo v v oo S 005 2454 0§ 830 8 —— 3 335
Accounts receivable, BEE L L L L oL L L e — 376,780 67,989 - 444,269
Current deforred 38X assel, © .0 v v o v b e e e e 10,186 2458 3347 _— 15,961
Prepaid INCOME HIXES |« « « o oo io e e 17,588 — — — 17.888
Inteyeommpany recehvables ... Lo o -— 1,728,788 16,509 (1,835,27)(n) —
Other current assels . .o v v v v 0o o s e e e 7,800 32919 5,363 — 46,142
Totil Current ASSEES . . v v - @ e e e e s e e e e s e e s 36,004 2,143,319 183.538 (1.835.217) 527,644
Property and equipment, 5ot . . . ... 17,521 468,138 56,051 — 542,310
Tnvestment 38 affiliales . . o . o o L e e e 3,741,085 67.575 — {3.808,060)(bY{(c} —
GootWill & o o e e e e e e e e e — 1,642,083 — — 1,642,083
Non-cusrent deferred X as5el . . o v v v o v v v e e e e 11,230 —_ — (11,2300 —
Other identifiable intangibles . . .. ... o Lo e —_ 72.51% — —_ 72,519
OHLEE ASSCIE + « -« v v e v e e e e e e e e e e e e 32,463 106,843 947 — 14(:253
Total Assefs . .. . . o oo e e e e , . 53,838,303 $4,500,477  $241,136  B5(5,655107) 52,924,809
Liahilities and Equily
Current Liabilities:
Bink OVEIUEALS + v o e e e e e e e e e e e e b e e e e e $ 21,746 § — § — % — S 21746
Current portion of long-term debt and notes payable oL 8496 1,844 534 — §0,874
Accoutts piryable . L L 9,885 84,304 14,343 — 108.532
ntorcompany payables . . . oL oo 1,835,217 — — {1,835,217)(a) —
Acerued paytoll © L. L e 17,410 76,670 3,010 —_ 97,000
ACCTUSd ViWalion « . o o v v v e e e e e e e 5,070 49,315 8,747 — 63,132
ACCTUEU JRECIESE « o v v e e e v e e e e e e e 10,596 76 2 -— 16,674
AcCTed OET + o o v v b v e e e e e e e e e e e s kLR 36,87 5,701 — 82,376
Tatal Current Linhilities . . . o o 0 0o e e 1,948,221 249,083 32,337 (1,835,217} 494,424
Long-terin debt, net ol current portion . . ... .o oo 1,198,151 364,794 79,157 — 1,542,102
Mon-current deferred tux lability . ... .0 oo e — 1i2.013 8,420 (15,23 (d) 109,203
Other non-carrent fiabilities - . . . . oo oo e e 52416 35.570 4 863 — 92,855
Totad EHHES + o v o o e e e e e e e e e e s 3,008,788 761 406 124,777 {1,846,447) 2,138,584
Redeemable non-controlling interesls . . .o o oo e — —_ 14,985 e 10,985
Stockholder’s Tiguity:
COnmon SI0CK  © o v o o b e e e e e e e e e e s 0 — — — 0
Capital N eXCESS OFPAL « L .o v e 885,407 — — — 8585.407
Retained carnings (aeenmudated delicity .. .o oo e (145,892} 1,048455 8,306 {1,056,821}{c) (145,892}
Subsidiary invesiment . .. ... Lo e s — 2,690,556 65,232 (2.751,839)(b) —
Total Sclegt Medical Corporation Stockholder's Fquity . . o v v v o oo oo - 739,515 3,730,014 69,649 (3.6808,660) 739,515
Non-controfling iferests . . . .. ..o e e — — 35725 — 35,725
Totad EQUILY « o v o v o v e e v i v i s e e 739,515 3,739,011 105,374 {3,308.660) 7175240
Total Linhilities and Equify . . . . . .o v e $3,838,303 84500477 5241,136  $(5.655,167) $2,924,809

(1)  Elimination of inlercompany.

(5} Elimination of investments in consolidated subsidiaries.

(¢)  Eliminalion ol investments in consolidated subsidiaries’ carnings.

{dy  Reclass of non-carrent deferred tax asscl to reperl net non-current deferred tax fizbility in consolidation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) '

18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries under Select’s
6.375% Senior Notes (Continued)

Mot operating revenues . . . ... ..

Costs and expenses:
Cost of services .. ... .00
General and administrative . .. .
Bad debt cxpense . .. ... ...
Depreciation and amortization . .

Total costs and expenses .. ... ..

Income (loss) Irom operations . . . .

Other income and expense:
Tntercompany interest and royalty
fees ... ..
Intercompany management fees .
Equity in carnings of
unconsolidated subsidiaries . . .
Loss on carly retirement of debt .
Interest expense . ..o 0w ..

Income {loss) from operations
before income taxes . . ... ...

Tncome fax expense (benefity . ...
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries . .

Netincome ... ..o

Less: Net income atiributable fo
non-conirelling inlerests ... ...

Net income attributable to Sclect
Medical Corporation . .. ... ..

(a} Elimination of cquily in carnings of subsidiaries.

Select Medical Corporation
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
Yor the Year Eanded December 31, 2014

Select (Parent Subsidimy  Non-Guarantor Consolidated Seleet
Company Only)  Guarantors Subsidiuries Eliminations  Medical Corporation
(in thousards)
$ 721 $2,634,480 $429,816 S — $3,005,017

2,015 2,209,724 370,601 - 2,582,340
86,311 (Lbo4) — — 85,247

— 38,052 6,548 — 44,600
3723 54,876 G755 — 68,334
92,049 2,201,588 386,904 — 2,780,541
{91,328) 332,892 42,952 — 284,476
(1,142) 1,131 1% —_ —
142,273 (120,528) {21,745) — —
— 6,958 86 — 7,044
(2,277) — — — (2,277}
(57,651) (23,367) {4,428) — (85,446)
(10,£25) 47,086 16,836 — 203,797
{4,333) 78,748 1,207 — 75,622
126,414 8,995 (1354143 (a} —
120,627 127,333 15,629 (135,414) 128,175
— 623 6,925 — 7,548
$120,627 § 126,710 § 8,704 §(133,414) 120,627
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries under Select’s

6.375% Senior Notes (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Setect Medical Corporation

TFor the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Operating aetivities

MNELIICOTIC . o v v v v v e o oo e e e e e

Adjustiments Lo reconcile act income fo nel cash
provided by operating activitics:

Distributions fram unconsolidated subsidiaries .. . .
Depreciation and amortization . . .. ... Lo
Provision forbad debls . . . oo oo oo
Cquity in carrings of uneonsolidated subsidiarics .
Loss on early relirement of debt . .. ... ...
Gain on dispesal or sale of assets .. ... oL
Stock compensation CXPense . . .. ...
Amortization of debt discount and issuanee costs .
Dreferred income TIXES . . o o v v oo e e s
Changes in operating asscts and liabililics, nel of

cffeets from acquisition of businesses:

Equily in carnings of subsidiaries . . v« - .o
Accounts receivable oL e oo
Other currenl assois . . o oo v v e e o
Other assels . . . v v v oo v v e e
Accounts payable . . oo Lo
Acered eXpenses . .. .o e o e e e o

Nel cash provided by aperating activities .. . . . . .

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment . .. ...
Investment in businesses ..o s e
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired . . . .

Net cash vsed in investing activities . o0« - . .0

Finateing activities

Borrewings on revelving facilities ... oo oo
Payments on revolving faciliies ... oo
Payments ontenm leans - .o oL e e
Tssuance of 63755 senjor notes .« . . . . oo oo s
Borrowings of elher debt . oo o oo
Principal payments on othier debt .. ..o .
Debl SSBance CONIE o v v v v v e v e
Proceeds from bank everdralls ... . o000
Purchase of non-controfling interests . . < . . . ..
Byuity investment by Holdings . ..o oo oo
Dividerds paid to Heldisgs . . .. . o0 o o
IREEFCOTOPENY « o ¢« o v v v ov o mm s i r s e
Proceeds from issaance of non-controlling interests .
Tax benelil from stock based awards . . .. . ... ..
Distributions to not-controiling iaterests . - ... ..

Nel cash used in finaneing activilies . . . .. ... ..

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ... ..

Cash and cash equivaleits at beginning of period . .

Cash and cosh equivalents al end of period ... ..

Select (Parenl Subsidiary  Non-Guaranter Consolidated Select
Company Qoly}  Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations  Medical Corporation
{in thousands)

$ 120,627 $127,333 $ 15,629 £(135,414)(a) § 128475
— 11,889 63 11,954
3.723 54,870 9,755 — 68,354
— 38,052 6,548 — 44,600
— (6,958) {86) — (T.044)
2277 — — — 127
— (1,168) 120 — (1.048)
11.186 — — — 11,186
7,553 — — — 7,553
14,311 — — — 14311
(126.419) (8,995) — 135,484(a) —
— {80.394) (17,408) — (97,802)
1,885 ¢4.004) 300 — (1,729
2,811 {2.5606) (348) — (103)
3,430 2,440 421 — 5,997
(6,353) (9,407) {219) — (16039
34,737 £21.008 14,807 — 174642
(4.074) (79,6000 (10,972) — {v5.2406)
— {4,634) — — (4.634)
— (3T [GIEY] — (1,211
(4.674) (84,631) (11,780) — (1o1081y
410,000 — — — 910,000
{870,000) — — — (870,000)
(33.994) — -— — {33,994)
L4850 —_ — — 111,654
8,151 — 925 — 9,076
(9,213) (2,058) {3,402) — (14,673)
{4.434) — — — (4434
9,240 — — — 9,210
- (9.96%) — {9,961}
7.335 — — —_ 7,353
{184.100) — — — (184,104)
22,162 (25.052) 2,930 — —
— — 85 — 185
3,119 — — — 3,119
— — (3,97 — (3,979
(30,0043 (37.11%) (3.341) — {70.516)
n {644) (320) — (465)
74 3,098 1,150 — £319
$ n § 248 5 830 3 — 5 3354

(2}  Elimination of eyuity in carnings of consolidated subsidiasics.
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18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries under Select’s

6.375% Senior Notes (Continued)

Select Medical Corporation
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Net operating revenues . ............

Costs and cxpenses:
Cost 0f SeIviCes .. v v v i e s
General and administrative .. ... .. ..
Bad debt expense .. ... ...
Depreciation and amortization. . ... ..

Total costs and expenses. . .. .. oo

Income (loss) from operations . .......

Other income and expense:
Intercompany intcrest and royalty fees .
Intercompany management fees . ... ..
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated

subsidiaries . .. ... .o

Loss on carly retirement of debt . . ...
Interest exXpPense . . v v v v e

Income (loss) from operations before
NCOME TAXCS v v e v e e

Income tax cxpense (benefit) .. .......
Equity in earnings of subsidiarics ... ...

NELINCOME + o v v v et a oo s e es

Less: Negt income attributable to
non-controlling inferests . ..........

Net income attributable to Select Medical
Corporalion . .. ...

Scleet Medical

Curporation Non-
{Parent Company Subsidiary  Guaranter
QOunly) Guaranfors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidaled
(in thousands)

$ 350 $2,576,906 $398,392 § o $2,975,648
1,757 2,155,370 338,349 — 2,495,476
76,709 212 — — 76,921
— 31,173 6,250 — 37,423

3,746 51,825 5,821 — 64,392
82,212 2,238,380 353,420 — 2,674,212
{(81,862) 338,326 44,972 — 301,436
(1,320) 836 490 — —
144,447 (125,357} (19,090) — —
— 2,384 92 —_ 2,476
(17,788) — — — (17,788)
(58,100) (22,916)  (3,938) — (84,954)
(14,629) 193,273 22,526 — 261,170
(1,238) 76,837 372 —_ 75,971
129,971 14,561 —  (144,532)(a) —
116,580 130,997 22,154 (144,532) 125,199
— G995 7,624 — 8,019
$116,580 $ 130,002 $ 14,530 §(144,532) $ 116,580

(a) Elimination of equity in carnings of subsidjaries.
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18. Financial Information for Subsidiary Guarantors and Non-Guaranlor Subsidiaries under Select’s
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Select Medical Corporation
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Select Medcal

Corporation Noa-
(Pavent Company Subsidiary  Guarantor
Only) Guaraniors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolicated

(in thousands)
Operating activitics
Net inCome ..o ov e e $ 116,580 $130,997  $ 22,154 $(144,532)(a) § 125,199
Adjustments to reconcile nct income to
net cash provided by operating

activilies:
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... 3,746 51,825 8,821 —_ 64,392
Provision for bad debts ... ... ... — 31,173 6,250 — 37,423
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
subsidiaires . ... o — (2,384) (92) — {2,476)
Loss on early retirement of debt ... ... 17,788 — — — 17,788
Gain on disposal or sale of assets . . . .. — (463) (118) — (581}
Stock compensation expense. .. .. .. .. 7,033 — — — 7,033
Amortization of debt discount and
SSUATICE COSES . v v e e 8,344 — — — 8,344
Deferred income EBXES . . .. ... 7,032 — — — 7,032
Changes in operating assets and
Habilities, net of cffects from
acquisition of businesses:
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries . . . . {129,971) (14,561) — 144,332(a) —
Accounts reeeivable ..o o —- {60,460) (6,085} — (67,145)
Other current assets . ... ..., ... . (4,145) (5,849) 1,827 — {8,167)
Otherassels . ... .ovev s (6,594) 3,026 84 — {(3,484)
Accounts payable . ... ... 2,075 (3,746) 388 — {1,283)
Due to third-pariy payors ... ...... — 3,067 {4,108) — (1,041)
Accrued CXPENSES. . .o va e (4,929) 20,843 {846) — 15,068
Net cash provided by operaling activities . 16,959 153,468 27,675 — 198,102
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment . . . . (3,024) (60,532)  (10,104) — {73,660}
Investment in businesscs, net of
diStEbutions . . 0 e e — (34,893) —_— — (34,893)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash
ACQUATEG . o o oot v e — (1,665} — . — {1,665)
Proceeds from sale of assets .......... — 2,456 456 — 2,952
Net cash used in investing activities .. ... (3.024) (94,634) {9,648) — (107,300)
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Select Medical Corporation

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Financing activitics
Borrowings on revolving facilities . . ... ..
Payments on revolving facilities ... .. ...
Borrowings on term loans, net of discount
Payments on term loans .............
Issuance of 6.375% scnior notes. . . ... ..
Repurchase of 7%% senior subordinated
notes, net of premivms .. ... ... ...
RBorrowings of other debt . ...........
Principal payments on other debt . ... ...
Dbt isSuance CostS. ... oo v v oo
Repayments of bank overdrafts . .......

Dividends paid to Holdings . . .........
INtercOmPany . . o oo v v v v v e s
Distributions to non-controlling interests. .

Net cash used in financing activilies . . . ..
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

period ...

Cash and cash cquivalents at end of
period ...

Seleet Medical
Cerporation
(PParent Company

Non-

Subsidiary  Guaranter

Only} Cuarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidaled
(in thousands)
690,000 — — 650,000
(800,000) — — (800,000)
208,500 — — 298,500
(596,720) — — (596,720)
600,000 — — 600,000
(70,000 — — (70,000)
8,923 5,303 1,084 15,310
(7,752) (873)  (2,209) (10,834)
(18,914 — — (18,914)
(5,330) — — (5,330)
1,525 — — 1,525
(226,621) — —_ (226,621)
77,455 (63,900}  (13,555) —
— — (3,537 (3,537)
(48934)  (59470)  (18217) (126,621)
(34,999) (636) (190) (35,825)
35,070 3,734 1,340 40,144
$ 710§ 3,008 $ 1,150 § $ 4,319

{2) Elimination of equity in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries.
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19. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The table below sets forth sclected unaudited financial data for cach quarter of the fast two ycars.

Holdings
Fiest Second Third Fourth
Quarier Quarter Quarter Quarter

(in thousands, except per share amounis)

Year ended December 31, 2014

Net Operating TeVenUES . . .. oo v v e e e vn s $762,578 $772,762 $758,060 $771,608
Income from operations .. ... . 78,444 82,193 66,017 57,822
Net income attributable to Select Medical Holdings
COrporation . ...vuvu e $ 33044 $ 35341 § 26,530 § 25,712
Income per common share!!:
Basic . o e e $ 024 % 027 %8 0208 020
DIt . o e e $ 024 $ 027 $ 020§ 020
Seleet
First Second Third Tourth
Quarfer Ouarter Quarter Quarler

{in thonsands)
Year ended December 31, 2014

Net operating TeVERUES . o oo v v oo $762.578 $772,762 $758,009 $771,608
Income from operations . ..., .o 78,444 82,193 66,017 57,822
Net income atiributable to Select Medical Corporation . . . . $ 33,044 $ 35,341 § 26,530 $ 25,712
Holdings
First Second Third TFourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(in tlrousands, except per sharve amounts)

Year ended December 31, 2015

Net operating revenes .. ..« .voovvvenacees s $795,343 $887,065 $1,021,123 $1,039,205
Income from operations . . .. ... ov i 79,265 85,011 48214 62,300
Net income attributable to Select Medical Holdings
COTPOrAtion « . v oo v v e e e $ 35063 § 36940 $ 29406 § 29,327
Income per common share!):
BaSIC .« s $ 027 § 028 % 022 % 0.22
DHUIEd & ot e e e e e $ 027 % 028 % 022 % 0.22
Select
Iirst Second Third Fourth
Quanrter Quarter Quartfer Quarter

(in thoosands)

Year ended December 31, 2015
Net operating FeVEIUES ..o vv v e s e $795,343  $887,065 $1,021,123 $1,039,205
Income from operalions . . . ... .. oo oh e 79,265 85,011 48,214 62,300
Net income attributable to Select Medical Corporation . $ 35,063 $ 36940 $ 294006 $ 29,327

(1) Duec to rounding, the summation of quarterly Income per share balances may not equal year to date
equivalents. :
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The following Financial ~Statement Schedule along with the report thereon of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP dated Tebruary 26, 2016, should be read in ¢

onjunction with the

consolidated financial statements. Financial Statement Schedules not included in this filing have been
omitted becausc they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial

statcments or notes thereto.

Select Medical Holdings Corporation

Select Medical Corporation

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance at

Charged fo
Cost and
Expeuses Deductions

1)

Balance at
End of Year

Beginning
Description of Year
AHowance for Donbtful Accounts
Year ended December 31,2015 . ... o o o $46,425
Yeur ended December 31,2004 .. ... o $40,815
Year ended December 31, 2013 . ..o oo e $41.,854
Income Tax Valuation Allowance
Year ended December 31, 2015 . ... ... oo o $ 9,641
Year cnded December 31,2014 . ... oo $10,547
Year ended December 31,2013 . ... 00 oo $13,341

$59,372  $(44,664)
$44,600  $(38,990)
$37,423  $(38,462)

$(2,055) $ —
$ (906) $  —
(2,799 § —

$61,133
$46,425
$40,815

§ 7,586
$ 9,641
$10,547

(1) Allowance for doubtful accounts deductions represent writc-offs against the reserve for 2013, 2014

and 2015.
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